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This summary is based on the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”),
and regulations, rulings and judicial decisions thereunder as of the date hereof, and such authorities may be
replaced, revoked or modified so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those
discussed below. It is for general purposes only and you should not consider it to be tax advice. In addition, it is
also based in part on representations made by the depositary and assumes that each obligation under the deposit
agreement and any related agreement will be performed in accordance with its terms. This summary does not
represent a detailed description of all the U.S. federal income tax consequences to you in light of your particular
circumstances and does not address the effects of any state, local or non-U.S. tax laws (or other U.S. federal tax
consequences, such as U.S. federal estate or gift tax consequences). In addition, it does not represent a detailed
description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to you if you are subject to special treatment
under the U.S. federal income tax laws, including if you are:

* adealer in securities or currencies;

* atrader in securities if you elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for your securities
holdings;

¢ afinancial institution or an insurance company;
* aregulated investment company;

* areal estate investment trust;

* atax-exempt organization;

¢ aperson liable for alternative minimum tax;

* aperson holding shares or ADSs as part of a hedging, integrated or conversion transaction, constructive
sale or straddle;

¢ aperson owning, actually or constructively, 10% or more of our voting stock;
* a partnership or other pass-through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes; or

* aU.S. holder whose “functional currency” is not the United States dollar.

We cannot assure you that a later change in law will not alter significantly the tax considerations that we
describe in this summary.

If a partnership holds our shares or ADSs, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend upon the
status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. If you are a partner of a partnership holding our shares
or ADSs, you should consult your tax advisor.

You should consult your own tax advisor concerning the particular U.S. federal income tax consequences to
you of the ownership and disposition of the shares or ADSs, as well as the consequences to you arising under the
laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

In general, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a U.S. person who is the beneficial owner of an ADS will
be treated as the owner of the shares underlying its ADS. Deposits or withdrawals of shares, actually or
constructively, by U.S. holders for ADSs will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax. The U.S. Treasury has
expressed concerns that parties through whom ADSs are pre-released may be taking actions that are inconsistent
with the claiming of foreign tax credits by U.S. holders of ADSs. Such actions would also be inconsistent with
the claiming of the reduced rate of tax, described in “—Taxation of Dividends” below, applicable to dividends
received by certain non-corporate holders. Accordingly, the availability of the reduced tax rate for dividends
received by certain non-corporate holders, each described in “—Taxation of Dividends” below, could be affected
by actions taken by parties through whom the ADSs are released.



Taxation of Dividends

The amount of distributions (other than certain pro rata distributions of shares to all shareholders) you
receive on your shares or ADSs, including net amounts withheld in respect of Republic of China withholding
taxes, will generally be treated as dividend income to you to the extent the distributions are made from our
current and accumulated earnings and profits as calculated according to U.S. federal income tax principles. These
amounts (including withheld taxes) will be includible in your gross income as ordinary income on the day you
actually or constructively receive the distributions, which in the case of an ADS will be the date received by the
depositary. You will not be entitled to claim a dividends received deduction allowed to corporations under the
Code with respect to distributions you receive from us.

With respect to U.S. holders who are individuals, certain dividends received from a foreign corporation in
taxable years beginning before January 1, 2011, on shares (or ADSs backed by such shares) that are readily
tradable on an established securities market in the United States may be subject to reduced rates of taxation,
provided further that the foreign corporation was not, in the year prior to the year in which the dividends are paid,
and is not, in the year in which the dividends are paid, a passive foreign investment company (see “Passive
Foreign Investment Company” below). Under current U.S. Treasury Department guidance, our ADSs, which are
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, but not our common shares, are treated as readily tradable on an
established securities market in the United States. Thus, we do not believe that dividends that we pay on our
common shares that are not backed by ADSs currently meet the conditions required for these reduced tax rates.
There can be no assurance that our ADSs will continue to be readily tradable on an established securities market
in later years (or that our shares will be readily tradable on an established securities market in any given year).
Individuals that do not meet a minimum holding period requirement during which they are not protected from the
risk of loss, or that elect to treat the dividend income as “investment income” pursuant to Section 163(d)(4) of the
Code, will not be eligible for the reduced rates of taxation regardless of the trading status of our shares or ADSs.
In addition, the rate reduction will not apply to dividends if the recipient of a dividend is obligated to make
related payments with respect to positions in substantially similar or related property. This disallowance applies
even if the minimum holding period has been met. You should consult your own tax advisor regarding the
application of these rules given your particular circumstances.

The amount of any dividend paid in NT dollars will equal the U.S. dollar value of the NT dollars you
receive, calculated by reference to the exchange rate in effect on the date you actually or constructively receive
the dividend, which in the case of an ADS will be the date received by the depositary, regardless of whether the
NT dollars are actually converted into U.S. dollars. If the NT dollars received as a dividend are not converted
into U.S. dollars on the date of receipt, you will have a basis in the NT dollars equal to their U.S. dollar value on
the date of receipt. Any gain or loss you realize if you subsequently sell or otherwise dispose of the NT dollars
will be ordinary income or loss from sources within the United States for foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

Subject to certain conditions and limitations under the Code, you may be entitled to a credit or deduction
against your U.S. federal income taxes for the net amount of any Republic of China taxes that are withheld from
dividend distributions made to you. In determining the amounts withheld in respect of Republic of China taxes,
any reduction of the amount withheld on account of a Republic of China credit in respect of the 10% retained
earnings tax imposed on us is not considered a withholding tax and will not be treated as distributed to you or
creditable by you against your U.S. federal income tax. The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for credit is
calculated separately with respect to specific classes of income. For purposes of calculating the foreign tax credit,
dividends we pay with respect to shares or ADSs will generally be considered passive income from sources
outside the United States. Further, a U.S. holder that

¢ has held shares or ADSs for less than a specified minimum period during which it is not protected from
risk of loss, or

* is obligated to make payments related to the dividends,

may not be allowed a foreign tax credit for foreign taxes imposed on dividends paid on shares or ADSs. The rules
governing the foreign tax credit are complex. We therefore urge you to consult your tax advisor regarding the
availability of the foreign tax credit under your particular circumstances.
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To the extent that the amount of any distribution you receive exceeds our current and accumulated earnings
and profits for a taxable year, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles, the distribution will first be
treated as a tax-free return of capital, causing a reduction in your adjusted basis in the shares or ADSs and
thereby increasing the amount of gain, or decreasing the amount of loss, you will recognize on a subsequent
disposition of the shares or ADSs. The balance in excess of adjusted basis, if any, will be taxable to you as
capital gain recognized on a sale or exchange. However, we do not expect to keep earnings and profits in
accordance with U.S. federal income tax principles. Therefore, you should expect that a distribution will
generally be treated as a dividend.

It is possible that pro rata distributions of shares or ADSs to all shareholders may be made in a manner that
is not subject to U.S. federal income tax. The basis of any new shares or ADSs so received will generally be
determined by allocating your basis in the old shares or ADSs between the old shares or ADSs and the new
shares or ADSs, based on their relative fair market values on the date of distribution.

For U.S. tax purposes, any such tax-free share distribution and any distributions in excess of current and
accumulated earnings and profits generally would not result in foreign source income to you. Consequently, you
may not be able to use the foreign tax credit associated with any Republic of China withholding tax imposed on
such distributions unless you can use the credit (subject to applicable limitations) against U.S. federal income tax
due on other foreign source income in the appropriate category for foreign tax credit purposes.

Taxation of Capital Gains

When you sell or otherwise dispose of your shares or ADSs, you will generally recognize capital gain or
loss in an amount equal to the difference between the U.S. dollar value of the amount realized for the shares or
ADSs and your basis in the shares or ADSs, determined in U.S. dollars. For foreign tax credit limitation
purposes, such gain or loss will generally be treated as U.S. source gain or loss. If you are an individual, and have
held the shares or ADSs being sold or otherwise disposed for more than one year, your gain recognized will be
eligible for reduced rates of taxation. Your ability to deduct capital losses is subject to limitations.

Any Republic of China securities transaction taxes that you pay generally will not be creditable foreign
taxes for U.S. federal income tax purposes, but you may be able to deduct such taxes, subject to certain
limitations under the Code. You are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax
consequences of these taxes.

Passive Foreign Investment Company

We believe that we were not a “passive foreign investment company” (“PFIC”) for U.S. federal income tax
purposes for 2006. In addition, based on the projected composition of our income and valuation of our assets,
including goodwill, we do not expect to be a PFIC for 2007. However, since PFIC status depends upon the
composition of our income and assets and the market value of our assets (including, among others, goodwill)
from time to time, there can be no assurance that we will not be considered a PFIC for any taxable year. If we
were treated as a PFIC for any taxable year during which you held our shares or ADSs, you could be subject to
additional U.S. federal income taxes on gain recognized with respect to the shares or ADSs and on certain
distributions, plus an interest charge on certain taxes treated as having been deferred under the PFIC rules.
Non-corporate U.S. holders will not be eligible for reduced rates of taxation on any dividends received from us in
taxable years beginning before January 1, 2011, if we are a PFIC in the taxable year in which such dividends are
paid or in the preceding taxable year.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

In general, dividend payments, or other taxable distributions, made within the United States to you will be
subject to information reporting requirements if you are a non-corporate U.S. person. Such payments may also be
subject to backup withholding if you:

+ fail to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number;



* are notified by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service that you have failed to report all interest or dividends
required to be shown on your federal income tax returns; or

* in certain circumstances, fail to comply with applicable certification requirements.

» If you sell your shares or ADSs to or through a United States office of a broker, the payment of the
proceeds is subject to both United States backup withholding and information reporting unless you
establish an exemption. If you sell your shares or ADSs outside the United States through a non-U.S.
office of a non-U.S. broker, and the sales proceeds are paid to you outside the United States, then
United States backup withholding and information reporting requirements generally will not apply to
that payment. However, United States information reporting, but not backup withholding, will apply to
a payment of sales proceeds, even if that payment is made outside the United States, if you sell your
shares or ADSs through a non-U.S. office of a broker that:

e isaU.S. person;

* derives 50% or more of its gross income for a specified three-year period from the conduct of a
trade or business in the United States;

¢ is a “controlled foreign corporation” as to the United States;

* is a foreign partnership, if at any time during its tax year one or more of its partners are U.S.
persons, as defined in U.S. Treasury regulations, who in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the
income or capital interest in the partnership; or

* the foreign partnership is engaged in a United States trade or business,
unless you establish an exemption.

You generally may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules that exceed
your income tax liability by filing a refund claim with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents
Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

We have filed this annual report on Form 20-F, including exhibits, with the SEC. As allowed by the SEC, in
Item 19 of this annual report, we incorporate by reference certain information we filed with the SEC. This means
that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the
SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be part of this annual report.

You may read and copy this annual report, including the exhibits incorporated by reference in this annual
report, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 and at the SEC’s
regional offices in New York, New York and Chicago, Illinois. You can also request copies of this annual report,
including the exhibits incorporated by reference in this annual report, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by
writing information on the operation of the SEC’s Public Reference Room.

The SEC also maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy statements and other

information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC. Our annual report and some of the other
information submitted by us to the SEC may be accessed through this web site.
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I. Subsidiary Information
Not applicable.

ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss related to adverse changes in market prices, including interest rates and
foreign exchange rates, of financial instruments. In the normal course of business, we are routinely subject to a
variety of risks, including market risk associated with interest rate movements, currency rate movements on
non-NT dollar denominated assets and liabilities and equity price movements on our portfolio of equity
securities.

We regularly assess these financial instruments and their ability to address market risk and have established
policies and business practices to protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential exposures.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We are subject to market rate risks due to fluctuations in interest rates for our short-term and long-term
loans, but we do not expect these risks to have a material impact on our company. We have not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. We have not been exposed nor do we anticipate being
exposed to material risks due to changes in interest rates. The risk associated with fluctuating interest rates is
principally confined to our cash deposits in banks, and, therefore, we believe our exposure to interest rate risk is
minimal.

We had interest-free debt of approximately NT$0.7 billion, NT$0.5 billion and NT$0.3 billion (US$9.2
million) as of December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, consisting of a loan with a five-year term
payable in three annual installments beginning in March 2005 and ending in March 2007. This loan was repaid in
full in March 2007. On November 18, 2005, our subsidiary Chief Telecom Inc. obtained a two-year secured loan
in the amount of NT$23 million from Chinatrust Commercial Bank at an annual interest rate of 3.05%, with
interest and principle payable monthly. Chief Telecom Inc. also has short-term loans in the amount of NT$126
million at a floating rate equivalent to the two-year time deposit interest rate plus 0.7%, which will be due on
October 11, 2007. We do not expect interest rate risk to have a material impact on our financial condition and
results of operations.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of our telecommunications equipment being sourced
from overseas suppliers and from our international settlement payments associated with our services for
international calls and roaming traffic. Specifically, our foreign currency exposure relates primarily to our
foreign-currency denominated purchase agreements, settlement of roaming and international traffic contracts in
foreign currencies, and to a limited extent, cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies. We have
entered into foreign exchange forward contracts and index future contracts designed to mitigate our exposure to
foreign currency risks. We expect our foreign currency hedging activities to increase in the future. Net losses
arising from these derivative financial instruments for the year ended December 31, 2006 were NT$52 million
including realized settlement losses of NT$32 million and valuation losses of NT$20 million. We do not believe
the gains and losses from these transactions to be material on our financial condition and results of operations.

Equity Price Risk

We are exposed to equity price risk as a result of the equities that we hold. Many of these equities are listed
on stock market exchanges, and the value of our equity holdings fluctuates depending on the market conditions.
During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entered into hedging transactions to manage the equity price risk
exposure by purchasing index future contracts. We do not expect the gains and losses in the values of the equities
that we hold to have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURITIES
Not applicable.



PART I

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
None of these events occurred in any of fiscal 2004, 2005 and 2006.

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

None.

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this annual report, an evaluation has been carried out under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as
such term is defined under Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that material information required
to be disclosed in this annual report is recorded, processed, summarized and reported to them for assessment, and
required disclosure is made within the time period specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a—15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, for
our company. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of a company’s assets, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that a company’s receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of a company’s management and directors, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of a company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to consolidated financial statement preparation and presentation and may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related rules as promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, management assessed the effectiveness of the our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 using criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Based on this assessment, management concluded that the our internal control over financial reporting was

effective as of December 31, 2006 based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
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Our management’s assessment, as well as the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting has
been audited by Deloitte & Touche, an independent registered public accounting firm, who has also audited our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. Deloitte & Touche has issued an
attestation report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting under Auditing Standard No. 2 of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries (the Company)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control —Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective intermal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria



established in Internal Control —Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 of the
Company and our report dated March 13, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements
and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the effect for the Company’s adoption of U.S. FASB Statement
No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche
Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan

The Republic of China

March 13, 2007

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

Jing-Twen Chen is our audit committee financial expert and an independent director. See “Item 6. Directors,
Senior Management and Employees—C. Board Practices.”

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our directors, supervisors, employees and officers,
including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer. We have included a copy of code of ethics as an
exhibit to this annual report.

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees by categories specified below in connection with certain
professional services rendered by Deloitte & Touche, our principal accountant for the years indicated. We did not
pay any other fees to our auditors during the periods indicated below.

For the year ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Audit fees() ... .. e e NT$27,664 NT$42,287 NT$59,014 US$1,811
Audit-related fees@® .............cciiiiiiiiiiiaa — — — —
Tax fees ... it i i i e e e 319 — — —
ANGREEPEESD o wminsemmammsroanswmms s e v 5w — — — —

(1) “Audit fees” means the aggregate fees billed in each of the fiscal years listed for professional services
rendered by our principal accountant for the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements or
services that are normally provided by the auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements.
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(2) *“Audit-related fees” means the aggregate fees billed in each of the fiscal years listed for assurance and
related services by our principal accountant that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or
review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported under “Audit fees.” Services
comprising the fees disclosed under the category of “Audit-related fees” involve principally the issuance of
agreed upon procedures letters.

(3) “Tax fees” means the aggregate fees billed in each of the fiscal years listed for professional services
rendered by our principal accountant for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning. Services comprising
the fees disclosed under the category of “Tax Fees” involve tax advice.

(4) “All other fees” means the aggregate fees billed in each of the last two fiscal years for products and services
provided by our principal accountant other than the services reported in items (1) to (3) above.

Prior to forming an audit committee, our board of directors is responsible for the oversight of the work
performed by our principal accountant. The policy of our board of directors is to pre-approve all audit and
non-audit services provided by Deloitte & Touche, including audit services, audit-related services, tax services
and other services as described above. After our audit committee was established in September 2004, all audit
and non-audit services provided by Deloitte & Touche were pre-approved by our audit committee.

ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES

None.

ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED
PURCHASERS

The table below details our purchases of our own equities pursuant to the share repurchase program
announced on February 9, 2006. Our share repurchase program authorized the purchase of a maximum of
250,000,000 shares of our common stock before the expiration of the program on April 9, 2006. Under this share
repurchase program, we purchased 192,000,000 shares of our common stock before the expiration of the
program.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(d) Maximum Number
(c) Total Number of (or Approximate
(a) Total Shares Purchased as Dollar Value) of
Number of Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet
Shares (b) Average Price Paid Announced Plans or Be Purchased Under
Period Purchased per Share Programs the Plans or Programs
February 10, 2006 — February 28, 2006 .... 51,545,000 NT$58.43 51,545,000 198,455,000
March 1, 2006 — March 31,2006 ......... 97,613,000 NT$59.54 97,613,000 100,842,000

April 1, 2006 - April 7,2006 ............ 42,842,000 NT$59.96 42,842,000 58,000,000



PART III
ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Registrant has elected to provide the consolidated financial statements and related information specified
in Item 18 in lieu of Item 17.

ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a list of the audited consolidated financial statements and report of independent registered
public accounting firm included in this annual report beginning on page F-1.

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Consolidated Financial Statements of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinnnian. F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2005and 2006 . ......cciiiiiiiiiinenneennnnnns F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31,

2004, 2005 and 2006 < o e o e o w s T R B e SRR SR S R F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004,

2008 a00d 2000750 o0 amin s i S iaiie Sa 5 0 SR R T8 SRR R S R, S e S R T S F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 . ........ F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ..........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiinniienerineronrrunnenans F-9
ITEM 19. EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits

1.1 Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. as last amended on November 29, 2000 (English translation)

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-31731) filed with the Commission on May 17,
2004).

1.2* Articles of incorporation of the Company as last amended on May 30, 2006 (English Translation).

2.1 Form of Deposit Agreement among the Company, The Bank of New York, as depositary, and Holders
and Beneficial Owners of American Depositary Shares issued thereunder, including the form of
American Depositary Shares (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (a) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-6 (File No. 333-106416) filed with the Commission on July 15, 2003).

8.1* List of Subsidiaries.

11.1 Code of Ethics (English translation), as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11.1 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (File No.
001-31731) filed with the Commission on May 26, 2006).

12.1* Certification of our Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

12.2* Certification of our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

13.1%* Certification of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has
duly caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this annual report on its behalf.
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B3 o Lon Yoo,

Name: Tan Ho Chen
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 23, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries (the Company) as
of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, all expressed in New Taiwan
dollars. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2006 and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158 on December 31, 2006 and the
impact on accumulated other comprehensive income is NT$226 million.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 13, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of New Taiwan Dollar amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such
translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 4. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented for the convenience
of the readers.

Is/ Deloitte & Touche

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
The Republic of China

March 13, 2007
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in Millions, Except Shares and Par Value Data)

December 31
Notes 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ Us$
(Note 4)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2524 §$41891 $70673 $ 2,169
Short-term investments 2,6,24 14,171 6,951 213
Trade notes and accounts receivable, net 27,20 12,839 12,630 388
Inventories 28 2,120 2,183 67
Prepaid expenses 1,149 %07 28
Deferred income taxes 2,19 3,353 1,271 39
Other current assets 18,19 5,805 6,287 192
Total current assets 81,328 100,902 3,096
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 29,24 3,391 3,546 109
INVESTMENT IN PRIVATE MUTUAL FUND 2,10 481 — —
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET 211,20 293,525 277,426 8,513
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
3G concession, net 2 9,732 8,983 276
Patents and computer software, net 2 184 210 6
Goodwill 2 - 3 2
Total intangible assets 9,916 9,266 284
OTHER ASSETS
Deferred income taxes, non-current 2,19 2,626 3457 106
Other 21,24 3,901 4,184 128
Total other assets 6,527 7,641 234
TOTAL 5395=168 5398;."8] $ 12,_2_36
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans 1424 § — $§ 126 $ 4
Trade notes and accounts payable 20 10,673 9,906 304
Income tax payable 2,19 997 12,469 383
Accrued expenses 12,20 16,010 19,937 612
Current portion of deferred income 2 8,907 8,354 256
Current portion of long-term loan 15,24 200 323 10
Customers’ deposits 24 7392 6,654 204
Other current liabilities 13,20 12,507 9,344 286
Total current liabilities 56,686 67,113 2,059
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred income, net of current portion 2 10,147 9,350 287
Long-term loan, net of current portion 15,24 300 - -
Accrued pension liabilities 2,18 - 1,612 50
Other 207 561 17
Total long-term liabilities 10,654 11,523 354
Total liabilities 67,340 78,636 2413
MINORITY INTEREST = 98 3
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 21,23
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 16
Capital stock-NT$10 (US$0.3) par value
Authorized-9,647,724,900 common shares at December 31, 2005; 12,000,000,000 common shares at
December 31, 2006
Issued and outstanding—9,647,724,900 common shares at December 31, 2005, 9,667,845,093 common shares at
December 31, 2006 96,477 96,678 2967
Capital surplus 157,490 164,330 5,042
Retained earnings 73,864 58,727 1,801
Other comprehensive income (3) 312 10
Total stockholders’ equity 327,828 320,047 9,820
TOTAL $395,168  $398,781 §12,236

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in Millions, Except Shares and Per Share and Per ADS Data)

REVENUES
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization
Marketing, excluding depreciation and amortization
General and administrative, excluding depreciation and
amortization
Research and development, excluding depreciation and
amortization
Depreciation and amortization— cost of revenues
Depreciation and amortization —other operating expenses
Total operating costs and expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME
Interest
Other income
Total other income
OTHER EXPENSES
Interest
Impairment loss on long-term investments
Other expense
Total other expenses
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX AND MINORITY INTEREST

INCOME TAX
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST

MINORITY INTEREST
NET INCOME
NET INCOME PER SHARE

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING

NET INCOME PER PRO FORMA EQUIVALENT ADS

‘WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF PRO FORMA EQUIVALENT

ADSs OUTSTANDING

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income
Cumulative translation adjustments
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Comprehensive income

Notes

wBe 8

2,19

2,6

Year Ended December 31
2004 2005
NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss
(Note 4)

$ 185,163 $ 184,696 $ 186,342 $ 5,718
58,664 68,073 62,606 1,921
19,208 23,650 20,651 633
2,550 3,505 3,314 102
2,476 3,144 2,824 87
38,358 38,800 38,353 1,177
2,345 2,363 2,297 70
123,691 139,535 130,045 3,990
61,472 45,161 56,297 1,728
224 452 804 25
901 1,527 735 2
1,125 1,979 1,539 47

5 2 6 =

— 740 ol =
415 366 490 15
420 1,108 496 15
62,177 46,032 57,340 1,760
11,259 12,733 15,281 469
50,918 33,299 42,059 1,291

= s 13 =
$ 50,918 $ 33,299 $ 42,072 $ 1,291
$ 5.18 $ 3.39 $ 434 $ 0.13
9,836,839,398 9,836,839,398 9,686,928.910 9,686,928,.910
$ 51.76 $ 33.85 $ 43.43 $ 1.33
983,683,940 983,683,940 986,692,801 986,692,801
$ 50,918 $ 33,299 $ 42,072 $ 1,291

5 2 - -
= = 541 16
$ 50,913 $ 33,301 $ 42,613 $ 1,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Amounts in Millions, Except Shares Data)

Capital Stock Retained Earnings Accumulated
Other Total
Common Capital Legal Losses on Unappropriated Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’

Shares Amount Surplus Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Income (Loss) Stock Equity

NT$§ NI$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003 (IN NT$) 9,647,724,900 $ 96,477 $135873 $29.437$ 2,675 % 46,293 $78,405 $ — § — § 31075

Additional capital contributed by
government — - 32 - — — — - — 32
Additional capital contributed by the
MOTC through selling shares to
employees at a discounted price - - 457 - - - - - - 457
Appropriations and distributions of
2003 earnings:
Legal reserve o - - 4,850 — (4,850) = o = =
Special reserve — — — — 1 (1) — — — —
Dividends declared - — — — - (43,414) (43414) - — (43,414)
Net income - — - — - 50,918 50,918 — - 50,918
Cumulative translation adjustment for
foreign-currency investments in
unconsolidated companies — - - — - - - (5) — (5)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 (IN NT$) 9,647,724,900 96,477 136,362 34,287 2,676 48,946 85,909 (5) — 318,743

Additional capital contributed by

govemment — — 6 - = = = = — 6
Additional capital contributed by the

MOTC through selling shares to

employees at a discounted price - - 12,770 — - - i - — 12,770
Additional capital contributed by

MOTC —pension — — 8,352 — — — — - — 8,352
Appropriations and distributions of

2004 earnings:

Legal reserve - - - 4,986 — (4,986)
Special reserve e = = = 4 @ = - = -
Dividends declared — — - - - (45,344) (45,344) = = (45,344
Net income = = = - - 33,299 33,299 - - 33,299
Cumulative translation adjustment for
foreign-currency investments in

unconsolidated companies e — e — . - . 2 — 2
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 (IN NT$) 9,647,724,900 96,477 157490 39273 2,680 31,911 73,864 3) — 327,828
Additional capital contributed by the
MOTC through selling shares to
employees at a discounted price
(Note 17) - - 503 - — - - - - 503
Employee stock bonus (Note 16) 23,005,695 230 1,151 — — - - - - 1,381
Appropriations and distributions of
2005 earnings:
Legal reserve — - - 4,765 - (4,765) - - - -
Cash dividends—NT$4.3 per
share - - - - — (40,660) (40,660) - - (40,660)
Stock dividends—NT$0.2 per
share 189,114,498 1,891 9456 - - (11,347) (11,347) - - -
Consolidated net income - - - — - 42072 42,072 - - 42,072
Purchase treasury stock— 192,000
thousand shares - - = — — - - - (11,3%2) (11,392)
Cancellation of treasury stock —
192,000 thousand shares (192,000,000) (1,920) (4270) — — (5:202) (5,202) 11,392 —
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities - - - - — - — 541 - 541
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS
No. 158, net of tax = — = = — = = (226) = (226)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 (IN NT$) 9,667,845,093 $ 96,678 $164,330 $44,0388 2,680 12,009 $ 58,727 $ 328 — 8 320047
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 (IN US$)
(Note 4) 9,667,845,093 § 2967 § 5042 § 1,351% 82% 368 § 1,801 $ 08 — 8 9,820

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in Millions)
Year Ended December 31
2004 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$
(Note 4)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $50,918  $33,299  § 42,072  $1,291
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,565 920 617 19
Depreciation and amortization 40,703 41,163 40,650 1,247
Impairment loss on long-live assets — 343 — —
Impairment loss on long-term investments — 740 — —
Loss (gain) on sales of short-term investments 12 (232) 93) 3)
Loss on sale of investments in private mutual fund - - 7 -
Net loss (gain) on disposal of scrap inventories and property, plant and
equipment 168 (305) (751) 23)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated companies (70) (160) 97 3
Cash dividends received from equity investees 56 66 42 1
Unrealized losses on investment in private mutual fund — 19 — —
Stock compensation expenses for shares sold to employees at a
discount 457 12,770 503 16
Employee stock bonus — - 1,151 35
Deferred income taxes 157 0,689 1,406 43
Minority interest — - (13) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade notes and accounts receivable (382) (72) (298) 9)
Inventories (326) (831) 580 18
Prepaid expenses (108) (547) 243 8
Other current assets 134 (4,210) (474) (14)
Other assets 742 (274) 285 8
Increase (decrease) in:
Trade notes and accounts payable 2,879 (4,002) (1,500) (46)
Income tax payable 109 (4,035) 11,472 352
Accrued expenses 162 1,642 4,120 126
Customers’ deposits (2,421) (1,012) (738) 23)
Other current liabilities 464 587 774 24
Accrued pension liabilities (1,229) 1,381 1,269 39
Deferred income (2,385) (778) (1,377) 42)
Other liabilities 40) 4 301 9
Net cash provided by operating activities 91,565 86,165 100,151 3,073
(Continued)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS —(Continued)
(Amounts in Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale securities
Acquisition of long-term investments
Acquisition of investment in private mutual fund
Proceeds from disposal of investments in private mutual fund
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisitions of patents and computer software
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term loans
Payments on principal of long-term loans
Cash dividends paid
Additional capital contributed by government
Purchase of treasury stock
Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Interest paid

Income tax paid
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired is
showed as follows:
Asset acquired
Goodwill
Liabilities assumed
Acquisitions of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalents
acquired

Year Ended December 31
2004 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(Note 4)
$9,127) $(4,824) $ (4,149 $ (128)
= - 12,001 368
(530) - 97 3
— (500) = =
- - 474 14
(22,889) (22,930) (27,681) (849)
215 374 779 24
(122) (139) (170) 5)
- - (283) @®
(32,453) (28,019) (19,126) (587)
= = 11 =
= (200) (202) ©
(43,414) (45,344) (40,660) (1,247)
32 6 — _
— — (11,392) (350)
(43,382) (45,538) (52,243) (1,603)
15,730 12,608 28,782 883
13,553 29,283 41,891 1,286
$29283  $41,891  $70,673  $2,169
$ 4 $ 2§ 7 § —
$10993  $11,419 $ 1287 $ 39
$ 456 § 14
73 2
(246) @®
$ 283 § 8

(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)
(Amounts in Millions)

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current portion of long-term loans

Activities related to the settlement of the pension obligations upon privatization:

Accrued pension liabilities
Deferred pension cost
Deferred income taxes

Additional capital contributed by MOTC- pension

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31
2004 _ 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(Note 4)

$200 $ 200 §323 §$ 10

$— $46915 $— $ —
- (34504) — =
- 4,059) — -
$— $ 8352 $— § —

(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Millions of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1.

GENERAL

Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. (“Chunghwa” or “the Company”) was incorporated on July 1, 1996 in the Republic of China
(“ROC?”) pursuant to the Telecommunications Act No. 30. The Company is a company limited by shares and, prior to August
2000, was wholly owned by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications (“MOTC?”). Prior to July 1, 1996, the current
operations of Chunghwa were carried out under the Directorate General of Telecommunications (“DGT”). The DGT was
established by the MOTC in June 1943 to take primary responsibility in the development of telecommunications infrastructure
and to formulate policies related to telecommunications. On July 1, 1996, the telecom operations of the DGT were spun-off as
Chunghwa which continues to carry out the business and the DGT continues to be the industry regulator.

As a telecommunications service provider of fixed-line and cellular telephone services, within the meaning of applicable
telecommunications regulations of the ROC, the Company is subject to requirements imposed by the MOTC.

Effective August 12, 2005, the MOTC had completed the process of privatizing the Company by reducing the government
ownership to below 50%. Portions of the MOTC’s common share holdings had been sold, in connection with the foregoing
privatization plan, in domestic public offerings at various dates from August 2000 to July 2003. Portions of the MOTC’s
common share holdings had also been sold to the Company’s employees at various dates from October 2000 to July 2005. In
July 2003, the MOTC sold the Company’s common shares in an international offering of securities in the form of American
Depository Shares (“ADS"). In August 2005, the MOTC sold 289,431,000 common shares in the ROC and 1,350,682,000
common shares in an international offering of securities in the form of ADS. As of August 12, 2005, the MOTC owned 47.84%
shares of the Company and the privatization plan was completed. The MOTC and Taiwan Mobile Co. sold 505,388,900 and
58,959,000 common shares of the Company, respectively, to third parties in the form of ADS amounting to 56,435 thousand
units in total on October 4, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, the MOTC owns 35.48% shares of the Company.

The Company’s common shares were listed and traded on Taiwan Stock Exchange and New York Stock Exchange on
October 27, 2000 and on July 17, 2003, respectively.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

Prior to August 12, 2005, the effective date of privatization, the Company maintained its accounting books and records based on
the ROC government regulations for state-owned enterprises, ROC government regulations governing the preparation of
financial statements of public companies and accounting principles generally accepted in the ROC (“ROC GAAP”). Subsequent
to August 12, 2005, the Company is no longer required to follow the ROC government regulations for state-owned enterprises.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared to present its financial positions, results of operations
and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP™).

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements consolidate the results and assets and liabilities of all entities within the
scope FASB Interpretation No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—an Interpretation of Accounting Research
Bulletin (ARB) No. 51” (“FIN46R”) which are Variable Interest



Entities (VIEs) where the Company is the primary beneficiary. For entities which are not VIEs the Company consolidates all
directly and indirectly majority owned subsidiaries of the Company applying the criteria in FASB Statement No. 94
“Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subsidiaries”. All significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated
upon consolidation.

The Company has established New Prospect Investments Holdings, Ltd. (B.V.1.) and Prime Asia Investments Group Ltd.
(B.V.L) in March, 2006. Both holding companies are operating as investment companies and the Company has 100% ownership
right in an amount of US$1 in each holding company. Beginning from September 2006, the Company acquired 70% ownership
of CHIEF Telecom Co., Ltd and consolidated the accounts from that date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the recorded
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Company. The Company continually evaluates these estimates,
including those related to allowances for doubtful accounts, useful lives of long term assets, pension plans, valuation allowances
on deferred income taxes, customer service periods, impairment of assets and the fair value of financial instruments. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and other assumptions, which it believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional currency of the Company is the local currency, the New Taiwan dollar (NT$) as it is the currency of the primary
economic environment. Thus, the transactions of the Company that are denominated in currencies other than the New Taiwan
dollars (the “foreign currency”) are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Gains or losses realized upon the settlement of a foreign currency transaction are included in the period in which the transaction
is settled. The balances, at the balance sheet dates, of the foreign currency assets and liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
prevailing exchange rates and the resulting differences are recorded as follows:

a. Long-term stock investments accounted for by the equity method—as cumulative translation adjustment in stockholders’
equity.
b.  Financial assets and liabilities —credited or charged to current income.

Business Combination

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given and liabilities incurred or assumed, by the Company in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities are recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable net assets.

The interest of minority stockholders in the acquiree is initially measured at historical cost.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include negotiable certificates of deposit and commercial paper purchased with maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.
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Short-term Investments

Short-term investments include open-ended mutual funds, real estate investment trust funds and listed stocks which are
classified as available-for-sale securities. When subsequently measured at fair value, the changes in fair value are excluded from
earnings and reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Unrealized losses are recorded as a charge to income
when deemed other than temporary.

The credit linked investment was an interest-rate-risk financial instrument with an embedded derivative linked to credit risk in
order to gain a higher rate of return. The hybrid financial instrument is remeasured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported in earnings. As such, the Company does not bifurcate the embedded derivative from the host contract.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting mainly of telecommunication cables, are stated at the lower of cost (weighted- average cost method) or
market value (replacement cost or net realizable value). If the market value is below cost, the Company writes down the
inventory to the market value which then becomes the new cost basis.

Long-term Investments

Investments in shares of stock in companies where the Company exercises significant influence over operating and financial
policy decisions are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The difference between the investment cost and the
Company’s proportionate share in the fair value of the net assets of the investee at the date of acquisition is recognized as equity
method goodwill which is not amortized. Any cash dividends received are recognized as a reduction in the carrying value of the
investment. Profits and losses arising from equipment purchases from equity investees are eliminated. For other-than-temporary
declines in the value of investments accounted for using the equity method, the investment is reduced to its fair value and an
impairment loss is recognized.

Investments in shares of stock with no readily determinable market values are accounted for using the cost method when the
ownership is less than 20%. Cash dividends received are recorded as income and stock dividends received are accounted for as
increases in the number of shares held but not recognized as income.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation expense is determined based upon the assets’ estimated useful life
using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Useful Life (Years

Buildings and improvements 10-60
Telecommunications equipment:

Transmission equipment 9-30

Exchange equipment 5-20

Miscellaneous equipment 3-10

Cost of maintenance and repairs, including the cost of replacing minor items not constituting substantial improvements, is
charged to current income.

Gains and losses on the sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recorded as costs of revenues.



Valuation of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. If the total of the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest
charges) is less than the carrying amount of the assets, a loss is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset.

3G Concession

3G Concession represents the amount paid by the Company on March 11, 2002 to the ROC government in connection with the
grant of a concession to provide various telecommunication services using spectrum assigned by the MOTC that utilizes the
International Mobile Telecommunication—2000: The Global Standard for Third Generation Wireless Communications
technical standards as announced by the International Telecommunications Union (the “3G concession”). Licenses for 3G
mobile telecommunication services are granted by the MOTC through a three-step procedure. Applicants first obtain a
concession from the MOTC through a bidding process. The holder of the concession must then obtain a network construction
permit from the DGT. Once the network construction is complete, the applicant may apply for a 3G license from the MOTC.
The Company received a 3G license from MOTC on May 26, 2005 and commenced operations of the network on the same day.
The 3G license is valid through December 31, 2018. The 3G Concession and any additional licensing fees are amortized on a
straight-line basis from the date operations commence through the date the license expires. Amortization expense for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 was NT$447 million and NT$749 million, respectively.

Patents and Computer Software

Patents are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives ranging from 10 to 20 years. Computer
software costs are capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of three years.
Amortization expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were NT$166 million, NT$154 million and
NT$145 million, respectively. Accumulated amortization was NT$1,133 million and NT$1,278 million as of December 31,
2005 and 2006, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as
an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is held in the currency
of the acquired entity and revalued to the closing rate at each balance sheet date.

Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is tested for impairment in accordance with statement of Financial Accounting
Standard (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and other Intangible Assets.”

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when they are realized or realizable and earned. Revenues are realized or realizable and
earned in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue
Recognition. When the Company has persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the goods have been delivered or the services have
been rendered to the customer, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

The following describes the application of that general policy to particular revenue streams.

The Company records service revenues as follows. Usage revenues from fixed-line services, cellular services, internet and data
services, and inter-connection and call transfer fees from other
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telecommunications companies and carriers are billed in arrears and are recognized based upon minutes of traffic processed
when the services are provided in accordance with contract terms.

The costs of providing services are recognized as incurred. The cost includes incentives to third party dealers which are payable
when the end user enters into an airtime contract.

Deferred income represents one-time connection fees from subscribers and advance received fees of service usage revenues
from subscribers and Internet set up fees from enterprises. The deferred income related to one-time connection fees is
recognized over the average expected customer service periods showed as follows:

As of December 31
2005 2006
Fixed-line 16 16
Cellular 4 4
Paging 2 2
Internet 4 4

Deferred income related to advance received fees of service usage revenues from subscribers and Internet set up fees from
enterprises is recognized as revenues when it is earned and realized or realizable.

The Company expenses the direct cost related to deferred income as incurred.

Where the Company enters into transactions which involve both the provision of air time bundled with products such as 3G data
card and handset, the bundled arrangement is accounted for in accordance with the Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue
No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. Total consideration received from handsets in these
arrangements is allocated and measured using units of accounting within the arrangement based on relative fair values limited to
the amount that is not contingent upon the delivery of other items or services. Total consideration received from 3G data cards
does not have objective and reliable fair values for delivered and undelivered items; therefore, the recognition of revenues
follows one unit of accounting.

Where the Company sells products to third party cellular phone stores the Company records the direct sale of the products,
typically handsets, as gross revenue when the Company is the primary obligor in the arrangement and when title is passed and
the products are accepted by the stores. Where the Company also pays the third party cellular phone stores incentives to connect
new customers and such incentives are identifiable, these incentives are accounted for as a reduction of revenue in accordance
with EITF, Issue No. 01-09, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s
Products.

Concentrations

For all pericds presented, no individual customer or supplier constituted more than 10% of the Company’s revenues, trade notes
and accounts receivables, purchases or trade notes and accounts payable. The Company invests its cash with several high-quality
financial institutions. The Company also does not have concentrations of available sources of labor, services or other rights that
could, if suddenly eliminated, severely impact its operations. However, telecommunications franchises and licenses are issued
solely by authority of the ROC government. The withdrawal or the revocation of the franchise and licenses by the ROC
government would severely impact the Company’s operations.

Pension Costs

Pension costs are recorded on the basis of actuarial calculations. As a foreign private issuer, the Company adopted SFAS No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” on July 1, 1996 as it was not feasible for the Company to obtain the information
necessary to adopt SFAS No. 87 as of July 1, 1989. The Company had



allocated a portion of the transition obligation directly to equity on the date of adoption based on the ratio of: (a) the years
elapsed between the effective date in SFAS No. 87 and the adoption date, to (b) the remaining service period of employees
expected to receive benefits as estimated at the adoption date.

The projected benefit obligation had been determined by actuarial methods based on the related employees’ service through the
date of privatization. An intangible asset representing the unrecognized net losses and unrecognized transition obligations had
been recorded on the balance sheet as deferred pension cost. Such amounts represented an additional minimum pension liability
and were recorded as an asset as such costs represent a receivable from the MOTC and was fully realized upon privatization.

The MOTC settled related pension obligations on the privatization date and recorded the difference between accrued pension
liabilities, deferred pension cost and related deferred income tax assets, as contributed capital in stockholders’ equity by applied
the guidance in AICPA Interpretation 39 to APB 16 “Business combinations” and FASB Implementation Guide, SFAS 88 Q&A
40.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions and
Other Postretirement Benefits” (SFAS 158). In accordance with this standard, the Company recorded the funded status of its
defined benefit pension as an asset or liability on its consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding offset, net of taxes,
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity, resulting in an after-tax decrease in
equity of NT$226 million.

The following table shows the effects of adopting SFAS 158 at December 31, 2006 on individual line items in the consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2006:

Before Application After Application
of SFAS 158 Adjustments of SFAS 158
NT$ NT$ NT$
Deferred income taxes assets, non-current $ 3,344 $ 108 $ 3,452
Accrued pension liability 1,278 334 1,612
Accumulated other comprehensive income 538 (226) 312
Total stockholders’ equity 320,268 (226) 320,042

Advertising and Promotional Expenses

Advertising and promotional expenses are charged to income as incurred. These expenses were NT$2,526 million, NT$2,610
million and NT$2,350 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are charged to income as incurred.

Employee Stock Compensation

The MOTC made an offer to the Company’s employees to purchase shares of common stock of the Company at a discount from
the quoted market price. The Company records compensation expense for this offer as the difference between the fair value of
common stock offered less the amount of the discounted price at the grant date.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into forward contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk and variability in operating results
due to fluctuations in exchange rates underlying the value of liabilities denominated in foreign currencies until such liabilities
are paid. A forward contract obligates the Company to exchange predetermined amounts of specified foreign currencies at
specified exchange rates on specified dates. These
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foreign currency forward exchange contracts are denominated in the same currency in which the underlying foreign currency
liabilities are denominated and bear a contract value and maturity date that approximate the value and expected settlement date,
respectively, of the underlying transactions. Gains and losses on forward contracts and foreign denominated liabilities are
included in other income (expense), net.

Derivatives are recognized at fair value and included in either other current liabilities or other current assets on the balance
sheet.

Income Tax

The Company is subject to income tax in the ROC. The Company accounts for income tax using the asset and liability method.
Under this method, deferred income tax is recognized for losses carried forward and the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between financial statement carrying amounts and their respective tax bases, using enacted laws. The Company
treats the investment tax credit as a reduction of current income taxes of the year in which the credit arises and defers unutilized
tax credit as deferred income tax assets. A valuation allowance is recognized if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is
more likely than not that a portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Under ROC tax regulations, the current year’s tax-basis earnings that are not distributed in the following year are subject to a
10% additional income tax, however, the tax regulations was amended to change 10% income tax from to tax on tax-basis
undistributed earnings to tax on book-basis undistributed earnings in May 2006. This 10% additional income tax is recognized
in the period during which the related income is generated. The Company adjusts the amount of accrued undistributed earnings
tax after the Company’s stockholders approve the distribution of earnings in the following year.

Earnings Per Share and Per Equivalent ADS

Net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the periods. Net income per equivalent ADS is calculated by multiplying the above net income per share by ten as each
ADS represents ten common shares.

Per share data has been restated for all periods presented to reflect the declaration of the stock dividends in 2006.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net income plus the results of certain changes in stockholders’ equity during a period from non-
owner sources that are not reflected in the statement of operations. Other comprehensive income consists of cumulative
translation adjustment, unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities and adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of
tax, and such amounts were (NT$3) million, NT$541 million and (NT$226) million, respectively, for the year ended

December 31, 2006. Under the ROC tax laws, income tax on gains derived from the securities transactions was ceased to be
imposed effective beginning after January 1, 1990, at the same time, losses on securities transactions are no longer deductible
from income derived from such transactions. As a result, no deferred income tax for unrealized gains or losses on available-for-
sale securities has been recorded.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” to define fair value, establish a framework for
measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and expand
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, the beginning of the Company’s 2008 fiscal year. The Company is assessing the impact the
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.



In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” —an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. The Interpretation
prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
The Company will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. The Company expects that the adoption of FIN48 will not have a
significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and effective tax rate.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108. This
Bulletin provides the Staff’s views on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year
misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. The guidance in SAB No. 108 is effective for financial statements on
fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. Adoption of this guidance did not materially impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” (SFAS 159). Under this Standard, the Company may elect to report financial instruments and certain other items at
fair value on a contract-by-contract basis with changes in value reported in earnings. This election is irrevocable. SFAS 159
provides an opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings that is caused by measuring hedged assets and liabilities that
were previously required to use a different accounting method than the related hedging contracts when the complex provisions
of SFAS 133 hedge accounting are not met. There is no impact to the Company as a result of the adoption of this standard.

RECLASSIFICATION
Certain accounts of 2004 and 2005 have been reclassified to conform to the 2006 financial statements presentation.

U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS

The Company maintains its accounts and expresses its consolidated financial statements in the New Taiwan dollars. For
convenience only, the U.S. dollar amounts presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated
at the noon buying rate for cable transfers as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as of
December 31, 2006, which was NT$32.59 to US$1.00. The convenience translations should not be construed as representations
that the New Taiwan dollar amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at this or
any other rate of exchange.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Cash and bank deposits $ 2355 $ 7986
Negotiable Certificate of Deposit 10,907 25,751
Commercial paper purchased 28,629 36,936

$41,891  $70,673
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SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

December 31
2005 2006
Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized
Amount Gain (Loss) Amount Gain (Loss)
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
Credit linked investment $ 35 § - § — $§  —
Available-for-sale securities

Open-end mutual funds 13,959 61 5,789 431
Real estate investment trust fund 104 4 179 29
Listed stocks 73 4 983 81
14,136 69 6,951 541

$14,171 $ 69 $ 6,951 $ 541

The Company’s gross realized gains and losses on the sale of investments for the year ended December 31, 2006 were NT$206
million and NT$81 million, respectively.

The Company entered into investment management agreements with one well-known financial institution (fund managers) to
manage its investment portfolios in 2006. In accordance with the investment guidelines and terms specified in these agreements,
the securities invested by the fund managers cannot be below a pre-defined credit rating. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company’s investment portfolios managed by these fund managers aggregated to an original amount of US$100 million. The
investment portfolios included securities such as open-end bond mutual fund, listed stocks and others.

The Company entered into a contract with Citibank Taiwan Branch (“Citibank™) to invest NT$35 million in a credit-linked
investment in October 2005. The Company received interest on a quarterly basis commencing from December 2005 through
March 2007, the maturity date. In addition to the quarterly interest, Citibank paid an additional amount based on the embedded
credit derivative. The embedded credit derivative was linked to credit events of Quanta Display Inc., a Taiwan Stock Exchange
listed company. The credit events included bankruptcy, failure to pay certain obligations, acceleration of obligations,
repudiation, moratorium and restructuring. If a credit event had occurred on any day prior to the maturity date, Citibank might at
its option declare a credit event, designate a cash settlement date and pay the cash settlement amount equal to 30% of the
outstanding contract amount to the Company in New Taiwan Dollars. The contract also granted a call provision to Citibank
enabling it to early terminate the contract. Following the exercise of the call provision, the Bank paid the Company the
terminated contract amount and any accrued interest.

The contract was accounted for as a hybrid financial instrument and remeasured at fair value at the balance sheet date and any
gain or loss is charged to income. On January 9, 2006, the Company sold the contract to a third party and recognized an
investment loss of NT$0.2 million.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2004 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ NT$
Balance, beginning of period $ 7,786 $4473 $3,626
Provision for doubtful accounts charged to income 1,522 906 623
Accounts receivable written off (4.835) (1,774) (699)

Balance, end of period $ 4,473 $ 3,605 $3,550




INVENTORIES

December 31
2005 2006
TNTS NTS$
Supplies $1,276  $1,580
Work in process 20 73
Merchandise - 161
Materials in transit 824 369
52120 §2183
The insurance coverage on inventories as of December 31, 2006 amounted to NT$1,338 million.
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
The long-term investments comprise the following:
December 31
2005 2006
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Ownership Value Ownership
NT$ NT$
Equity investees:
Chunghwa Investment (“CHI") $ 950 49 $ 975 49
Taiwan International Standard Electronics (“TISE”) 575 40 609 40
Spring House Entertainment Inc. — — 17 30
1,525 1,601
Cost investees:
Taipei Financial Center (“TFC”) 1,790 12 1,790 12
iD Branding Ventures (“iDBV”) - — 75 8
RPTI International (“RPTI”) i 12 a! 12
Siemens Telecommunication Systems (“Siemens”) 5 15 5 15
3-Link Information Service (“3-Link”) — — 4 12
1,866 1,945
$3,391 $3,546

The Company invested Spring House in October, 2006, for a purchase price of NT$22 million. Spring House engages mainly in
internet services.

The Company invested iDBV on November 13, 2006, for a purchase price of NT$75 million. iDBV engages mainly in
investment in companies dealing with brand marketing.

CHI invests in companies engaged in telecom and software businesses. No dividends were declared by CHI for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

TISE designs, manufactures and sells telecommunications equipment. It also provides maintenance services on such
telecommunications equipment. Dividends of NT$66 million and NT$42 million were declared by TISE for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The Company evaluates the investments in TFC, iDBV, RPTI, Siemens and 3-Link for impairment annually. There were no
indicators of impairment noted in iDBV, RPTI, Siemens and 3-Link for the years
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11.

ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. In 2005, the Company identified an impairment indicator in TFC and
determined the investment in TFC was impaired due to an adverse change in the market condition of the industry in which TFC
operates. The Company recognized an impairment loss of NT $740 million in 2005.

The Company received dividends of NT$58 million and NT$29 million from Siemens during the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2006, respectively.

INVESTMENT IN PRIVATE MUTUAL FUND

The Company invested NT$500 million in a private placement fund managed by First Global Investment Trust Company
Limited (“FGIT”) from September 27, 2005 to September 28, 2008. FGIT, on-behalf of the Company, invested 95% of the total
investment principle in a three-year structured time deposit issued by Far Eastern International Bank and invested the rest of the
investment principal in a currency swap with Ta Chong Bank. The Company marks to market the private placement fund
without distinguishing and presenting the underlying investment assets separately on its balance sheets. This is because the
majority of the fair value of the private placement fund is generated from the three-year structured time deposit and the fair
value of the currency swap is nominal. On June 28, 2006, the Company sold the private placement fund and recognized an
investment loss of NT$7 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Cost
Land $ 42,463 $ 42,483
Buildings and improvements 57,687 59,259
Telecommunications equipment 620,377 629,451
Miscellaneous equipment 27,317 26,666
747,844 757,859
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements 13,235 14,268
Telecommunications equipment 447 888 468,325
Miscellaneous equipment 21,077 21,329
482,200 503,922
Construction in progress 27,856 23,462
Advances related to acquisition of equipment 25 27
Property, plant and equipment, net $293,525 $277,426

Because of the improvements of telecommunication technology and changes in the market, the paging division is at risk of
obsolescence. If the total expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount
of the assets of paging division, a loss is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value. The Company
performed an impairment analysis as required by SFAS No. 144 and concluded that the paging division assets were impaired.
An impairment loss of NT$343 million (US$10 million) was recognized in 2005 and was charged to cost of revenues.

No interest expense was capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.



The Company carries insurance on certain buildings and certain telecom equipment with carrying values of NT$1,796 million
and NT$6,475 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The Company does not carry comprehensive insurance
on all properties.

ACCRUED EXPENSES
December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Accrued compensation $10,339  $12,995
Accrued franchise fees 2,539 2,413
Other accrued expenses 3,132 4,529

$16,010  $19,937

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Amounts collected from subscribers on behalf of other telecommunications companies and
carriers $3323  $3,364
Payable to equipment suppliers 4,142 1,661
Payables to construction suppliers 2,406 1,073
Other 2,636 3,246
$12,507  $9,344
SHORT-TERM LOANS
December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Bank loans—annual yield rate—2.955% $— $126
LONG-TERM LOANS (INCLUDING CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM LOANS)
December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Loan from the Fixed-Line Fund $500  $300
Bank loans—annual yield rate—3.05% - 23
500 323
Less: Current portion of long-term loans _200 323
B0 §—

The loan from the Fixed-Line Fund was obtained pursuant to a long-term loan agreement with the Fixed-Line Fund managed by
the Ministry of Interior that allows the Company to obtain unsecured interest-free credit up to the original amount contributed to
the fund. The outstanding principal is carried at its
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undiscounted amount and is payable in three annual installments (NT$200 million, NT$200 million and NT$300 million)
starting on March 12, 2005 until March 12, 2007.

CHIEF obtained a secured loan from Chinatrust Commercial Bank. Interest and principal are payable monthly and the secured
loan is due by November 18, 2007.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has unused credit line of approximately NT$31,924 million, which are available for
short-term and long-term borrowings.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation revised on May 30, 2006, the Company’s authorized capital is

NT $120,000,000,020. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation and the Republic of China Telecommunications Act provide that
the MOTC has the right to purchase two redeemable preferred shares at NT$10 (par value) in the event its ownership of the
Company falls below 50% of the outstanding common shares. On March 28, 2006, the board of directors approved the issuance
of the 2 preferred shares, and the MOTC purchased the 2 preferred shares at par value on April 4, 2006.

The MOTC, as the holder of those preferred shares is entitled to the same rights as holders of common shares and certain
additional rights as specified in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation as follows:

a.  The holder of the preferred shares, or its nominated representative, will act as a director and/or supervisor during the entire
period in which the preferred shares are outstanding.

b.  The holder of preferred shares has the same pre-emptive rights as holders of common shares when the Company raises
capital by issuing new shares.

¢.  The holder of the preferred shares will have the right to veto on any change in the name of the Company or the nature of its
business and any transfer of a substantial portion of the Company’s business or property.

d.  The holder of the preferred shares may not transfer the ownership. The Company must redeem all outstanding preferred
shares within three years from the date of their issuance.

As the preferred shares are mandatory redeemable in 2009, the shares are classified as other long-term liabilities. The
redemption value of preferred shares is NT$20.

For the purpose of privatizing the Company, the MOTC sold 1,109,750 thousand common shares of the Company in an
international offering of securities in the form of ADS amounting to 110,975 thousand units (one ADS represents ten common
shares) on the New York Stock Exchange on July 17, 2003. Subsequently, the MOTC sold 1,350,682 thousand common shares
in the form of ADS amounting to 135,068 thousand units on August 10, 2005. Afterwards, the MOTC and Taiwan Mobile Co.,
Ltd sold 505,389 thousand and 58,959 thousand common shares of the Company, respectively, to third parties in the form of
ADS amounting to 56,435 thousand units in total on October 4, 2006. As of December 31, 2006, the MOTC and Taiwan Mobile
Co., Ltd. have sold 3,024,780 thousand common shares in the form of ADS amounting to 302,478 thousand units.

The ADS holders generally have the same rights and obligations as other common stockholders, subject to the provision of
relevant laws. The exercise of such rights and obligations shall comply with the related regulations and deposit agreement,
which stipulate, among other things, that ADS holders can, through deposit agents, exercise their voting rights, sell their ADSs,
and receive dividends declared and subscribe to the issuance of new shares.

As of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006, the outstanding ADSs were 246,043 thousand units and 307,399 thousand
units (including stock dividends), which equaled approximately 2,460,431 thousand and 3,073,988 thousand common shares and
represented 25.50% and 31.8% of the Company’s total outstanding common shares, respectively.
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Under the ROC Company Law, capital surplus may only be utilized to offset deficits or be declared as stock dividends. Also,
such capital surplus can only be declared as a stock dividend by the Company at an amount calculated in accordance with the
provisions of existing regulations.

In addition, before distributing a dividend or making any other distribution to stockholders, the Company must pay all
outstanding taxes, recover any past losses and set aside a legal reserve equal to 10% of its net income, and depending on its
business needs or requirements, may also set aside a special reserve. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, no less

than 50% of the earnings comprising remaining balance of net income, if any, plus cumulative undistributed earnings, shall be
distributed in the following:

a. From 2% to 5% of distributable earnings shall be distributed to employees as employee bonus.

b.  No more than 0.2% of distributable earnings shall be distributed to board of directors and supervisors as remuneration in
the following years after privatization.

¢. Cash dividends to be distributed shall not be less than 50% of the total amount of dividends to be distributed.

During the year of privatization, the distributable earnings are limited to the earnings generated after privatization. The
remaining distributable earnings can be distributed to the stockholders based on the resolution of stockholders’ meeting.

If cash dividends to be distributed is less than NT$0.10 per share, such cash dividend shall be distributed in the form of common
shares.

Under the ROC Company Law, the appropriation for legal reserve shall be made until the accumulated reserve equals the
aggregate par value of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. This reserve can only be used to offset a deficit, or when
reaching 50% of the aggregate par value of the outstanding capital stock of the Company, up to 50% of the reserve may, at the
option of the Company, be declared as a stock dividend and transferred to capital.

The appropriations and distributions of the 2005 earnings of the Company have been approved and resolved by the stockholders
on May 30, 2006 as follows:

Amount
NT$
Legal reserve $ 4,765
Cash dividends—NT$4.3 per share 40,660
Stock dividends—NT$0.2 per share 1,891
Employee bonus—cash 230
Employee bonus—stock (at par value) 230
Remuneration to board of directors and supervisors 15
$47,791

The amount of compensation expense related to employee stock bonus is determined based on the market value of the
Company’s common stock at the date of approval of distribution by the shareholders on May 30, 2006. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, the compensation expense related to employee stock bonus was NT$1,151 million in addition to NT$230
million which had been recognized in prior year.

EMPLOYEE STOCK COMPENSATION
The MOTC provided employees with two stock purchase plans: The market discount plan and the par value plan.

Market discount plan—under the market discount plan, the MOTC sold shares of stock at discounted prices to employees at
various times from October 2000 to September 2005. The employees purchased the
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common shares at discounts of 10% and 20% and 50% from the quoted market price in consideration for their commitment to
hold the common shares for two, three and four years (the “holding periods”), respectively. The common shares are held by an
escrow agent on behalf of the employees/stockholders. There are no circumstances under which the MOTC or the Company
would be required to repurchase these common shares. Also, the employees are not required to remain employed with the
Company during the duration of the holding periods. The Company recognized nil and NT$12,542 million as compensation
expense for the discounted shares purchased by employees for the years ended December 31, 2004, and 2005, respectively.
There were no market discount plan offerings during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Par value plan—under the par value plan, the MOTC sold shares of stock to employees at par value (NT$10). The difference
between the market price of the stock on the offering dates and the par value was recognized as compensation expense. The total
shares sold to employees by the MOTC for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 were 4,126,928 shares and 10,411,955
shares, respectively. The MOTC received total proceeds of NT$41 million and NT$104 million for the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, from these sales.

The Company recognized NT$457 million, NT$228 million and NT$503 million as compensation expense for the discounted
shares purchased by employees under the par value plan for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The basic earnings per share were reduced NT$0.05, NT$1.30 and NT$0.05 for years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006, respectively, after the Company recognized the aforementioned compensation expenses under market discount plan and
par value plan. There was no income tax benefit recognized in the statement of operation for share-based compensation
arrangements and there was no effect on the statements of cash flow.

PENSION PLAN

At the time of its incorporation on July 1, 1996, the Company continued the existing two noncontributory defined benefit
pension plans covering all its employees, as previously adopted by the DGT. The first plan (hereinafter referred to as “Plan A™)
covered civil service eligible employees (i.e., employees who meet the necessary qualifications set by the ROC Government)
and the second plan (hereinafter referred to as “Plan B”) covered all other employees of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
“non-civil service eligible employees”). The adoption of two pension plans was necessary as different pension laws apply to
civil service eligible and non-civil service eligible employees.

Plan A provided benefits equal to the sum of: (a) the lump-sum payment equivalent to one benefit unit per year for the first
twenty service years rendered and one-half benefit unit per service year rendered thereafter, with one benefit unit equivalent to a
portion of the salary of the employee at the time of retirement (referred to hereinafter as “pensionable salary”), and (b) annuity
payments payable monthly equivalent to a certain percentage of the benefit unit. Plan B provided benefits equal to the lesser of:
(a) forty-five benefit units, or (b) two benefit units per service year rendered for the first fifteen years, and one-half benefit unit
per service year exceeding fifteen years rendered before August 1, 1984 and one benefit unit per service year for services
rendered after August 1, 1984, with one benefit unit equivalent to the monthly average base salary (consisting of regular salary
items plus overtime salary). Plan A was funded based on amounts included in budgets approved by the Legislative Yuan and
supplementary budgets approved by the Executive Yuan while Plan B was funded by the Company at an amount equivalent to
2% to 15% of the monthly salary.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 87 on July 1, 1996 (adoption date), the date of its incorporation. The unrecognized net
transition obligation recorded to stockholders’ equity on July 1, 1996 was NT$6,571 million which represents the difference in
the net pension cost for the period from the issuance of SFAS No. 87 and the date of adoption. The remaining unrecognized net
transition obligation of NT$16,790 million is amortized over the estimated remaining service period of the employees as
determined on July 1, 1996, which is a period of twenty-five years for civil service eligible employees and seventeen years for
non-civil service eligible employees.



As required by the ROC Government for state-owned enterprises instructed to undergo privatization plans effective on the
privatization date, except for those employees who reached the mandatory retirement age (the age of 65 for Plan A participants
and age 60 for Plan B participants) by that day, employees received pension benefit payments calculated in accordance with the
Guidelines on Payments of Severance Benefits to Employees of State-Owned Enterprises (“Guidelines”).

Under the Guidelines, on the privatization date, settlement benefit payments were distributed to both Plan A and Plan B
participants as follows: (a) employees who voluntarily left the Company on the privatization date (hereinafter referred to as
“separated employees”) received a service clearance payment which is calculated similar to the benefit formula under the
original Plan B as mentioned above plus an additional six-month salary and one-month advance notice pay (hereinafter referred
to as the “additional separation payments”); and (b) employees who opted to remain with the privatized company after the
privatization date (hereinafter referred to as “privatized company employees™) would receive an amount equivalent to those
received by the separated employees without the additional separation payments. Privatized company employees who are
involuntarily terminated by the Company within five years from the date of privatization (hereinafter referred to as “redundant
employees”) will receive redundancy benefits equivalent to the pension amount as computed based on one benefit unit for every
year of service after privatization plus the additional separation payments (hereinafter referred to as “redundancy benefit
payments”). The six-month portion of the additional separation payments was paid by the MOTC. The accrued pension amount
after privatization and the one-month advance notice pay were paid by the Company.

The unrecognized prior service costs, which amounted to NT$30,018 million, related to the increased benefits provided under
the Guidelines described in the preceding paragraph were amortized through June 30, 2001. The unrecognized prior service
costs excluded any costs expected to be incurred for the additional separation payments or redundancy benefit payments. The
additional separation payments under the Guidelines were accounted for as special termination benefits and were recognized in
the period when the employee accepted the offer while the redundancy benefit payments will be recognized in the period
management approves a plan of termination.

In order to increase operational efficiency, the Company approved a Special Retirement Incentive Program (“Program A”).
Program A allowed eligible employees who voluntarily left the Company on February 1, 2005 to receive benefit payments based
on the respective original plan (meaning Plan A or Plan B) plus the additional separation payments. The present value of such
amount over and above the lump sum amount was NT$821 million and was accounted for as special termination benefits in the
statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2005. A portion of the Program A benefits amounting to NT$243 million
were recognized in 2004 when employees formally accepted the terms of Program A.

In order to provide employees with additional consideration, the Company approved another Special Retirement Incentive
Program (“Program B”) in May 2005. Program B allowed eligible employees who voluntarily left the Company on August 11,
2005, the day before privatization, to also receive benefit payments based on the respective original plan (meaning Plan A or
Plan B) plus the additional separation payments. The present value of such amount over and above the lump sum amount was
NT$1,325 million and was accounted for as special termination benefits in the statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

The Company also approved another Special Retirement Incentive Program (“Program C”) in December 2005. Program C
allowed eligible employees who voluntarily applied to leave the Company from March 1 to March 31, 2006 to also receive
benefit payments based on the respective original plan plus the additional separation payments. The approval procedure took up
to 15 days after applications were submitted therefore, if employees applied for the voluntary retirement on March 31, 2006,
they were eligible to retire from the Company on or before April 14, 2006. The present value of such amount over and above the
lump sum amount that would have been paid to the eligible employees was accounted for as special termination benefits.
Accordingly, such benefits were recognized as a liability and charged to income when employees formally accepted the terms of
Program C. The Company recognized expense of NT$2,302 million for Program C during 2006. The New Plan B vested benefit
obligations for the majority of the employees
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electing Program C were settled; the remaining employees have accumulated benefits under New Plan B but were not eligible to
receive the benefits and the election of Program C terminated their employment earlier than expected, thereby reducing their
expected years of future service.

Under applicable ROC regulations, upon the privatization, the obligation related to annuity payments due after the date of
privatization for civil serve eligible employees who retire prior to that date would be born by the MOTC. The Company
completed its privatization plan on August 12, 2005. On the date of privatization, the MOTC settled all employees’ past service
costs. The portion of the pension obligations that was settled by the MOTC, represented by the difference between the accrued
pension liabilities and the deferred pension cost and related deferred income tax assets and was accounted for as contributed
capital and recorded in stockholders’ equity as of August 12, 2005. The non-cash financing activities and related amounts of the
pension obligation settlement as of the date of privatization are disclosed on the face of the statement of cash flows.

Upon privatization, the MOTC settled all accrued pension obligations for Plan A and Plan B including service clearance
payment, lump sum payment under civil plan, additional separation payments, and other related obligations upon the completion
of the privatization in accordance with the Statute Governing Privatization of Stated-Owned Enterprises. After paying all
pension obligations for privatization, the plan assets will be transferred to the Fund for Privatization of Government-owned
Enterprises (the “Privatization Fund”) under the Executive Yuan. According to the instructions of MOTC, the Company has
been requested to administer the distributions to employees for pension obligations including service clearance payment, lump
sum payment under civil service plan, additional separation payments, and other related obligations upon the completion of the
privatization on the MOTC’s behalf acting as the MOTC’s agent merely in an administrative capacity with no rights or duties
received or owed for a six-month transition period. In August 2006, CHT transferred the remaining funds to be disbursed to
employees to the Privatization Fund.

Upon privatization and settlement of the related obligations, Plan A and Plan B ceased to exist. A new plan (“New Plan B”),
having similar terms and benefits as Plan B, was established and offered to employees. Employees choosing to enter into New
Plan B were not credited with any prior service nor did they receive any accumulated benefits from prior service and benefits
begin to accrue to them under this plan commencing from the privatization date. The components of net periodic benefit costs
before privatization are for both Plan A and Plan B. The effect of privatization relates to both Plan A and Plan B. The amounts
of plan assets remaining after privatization and the components of net periodic benefit costs after privatization relate to New
Plan B.

The Company’s subsidiary— CHIEF Telecom has its own pension plan, which is similar to New Plan B of the Company.

Before Privatization

The components of net periodic benefit costs are as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, August 12,
2004 2005
NT$ NT$
Service cost $ 1943 $ 1253
Interest cost 1,887 1,232
Expected return on plan assets (1,226) (798)
Termination benefit under the Program A 243 —
Amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation 939 ol
Amortization of unrecognized net loss 907 996

Net periodic benefit pension cost $ 4,693 $ 3,258



The changes in benefits obligation and plan assets and the reconciliation of funded status are as follows:

Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, August 12,
2004 2005
NT$ NT$
Change in benefits obligation:
Projected benefits obligation, beginning of year $ (126,126) $ (134,911)
Services cost (1,943) (1,253)
Interest cost (1,887) (1,232)
Termination benefit under the Program A (243) —
Actuarial gain (loss) (8,038) 2,294
Benefits paid 3,326 2,126
Projected benefits obligation, end of period $ (134911) $ (132,976)
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 82,578 $ 85,870
Actual return on plan assets 696 441
Employer contributions 5,922 2,956
Benefits paid (3,326) (2,126)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period $ 853870 $ 87,141
Reconciliation of funded status:
Funded status $ (49,041) $ (45,839)
Unrecognized net transition obligation 8,811 8,237
Unrecognized actuarial loss 29,200 26,267
Net amount recognized $ (11,030) $ (11,331)
The weighted-average asset allocations by asset category are:
Time deposit 85%
Short-term notes 15%
100%
(Concluded)

The target asset allocations are established through an investment policy established by the Chunghwa Telecom’s Employee
Pension Fund Committee and agreed to by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”). As increased liquidity of the fund is necessary due
to the privatization of the Company, the current policy for plan assets is to place funds in time deposit accounts of the financial
and postal institutions, non-designated trust funds in an investing company or financial institution and government bonds. In
addition, the pension fund may invest in beneficial certificates of equity securities.

Effect of Privatization

Before Effect of After

Privatization Privatization Privatization

NT$ NT$ NT$
Projected benefits obligation $(132,976) $ 132,976 $ -
Plan assets at fair value 87,141 (86,061) 1,080
Funded status (45,835) 46,915 1,080
Unrecognized net transition obligation 8,237 (8,237) =
Unrecognized net loss 26,267 (26,267) —
Net amount recognized $ (11,331) $ 12411 $ 1,080
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The plan assets and net period benefit costs after privatization represent those assets and costs of New Plan B.

After Privatization

The components of net periodic benefit costs of New Plan B for the period from August 13, 2005 through December 31, 2005,
and of New Plan B and the pension plan of subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Period from
August 13 to Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Service cost $ 1,192 $ 3,073
Interest cost — 59
Expected return on plan assets (14) (66)
Amortization of unrecognized net loss — 45
Curtailment/settlement loss to be recognized — 161
Net periodic benefit pension cost $ 1,178 $ 3272

The changes in benefits obligation and plan assets and the reconciliation of funded status for New Plan B and the pension plan
of subsidiary are as follows:

Period from

August 13 to Year Ended

December 31, December 31,

W05 2006

NT$ NT$
Change in benefits obligation:
Projected benefits obligation, beginning of year $ — $ (1,683)
Services cost (1,192) (3,073)
Interest cost — (59)
Curtailment/settlement effect — 270
Actuarial (loss) gain (501) 19
Benefits paid 10 6
Impact on acquisition of subsidiary — (14)
Projected benefits obligation, end of year $  (1,683) $ (4534
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 1,080 $ 1,637
Actual return on plan assets (18) 66
Employer contributions 585 1,544
Benefits paid—settlement — (326)
Benefits paid (10) 6)
Impact on acquisition of subsidiary — 7
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 1,637 $ 2922

(Continued)



Reconciliation of funded status
Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Net amount recognized —prepaid current asset (liability)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income
Net actuarial loss, pretax
Deferred tax asset

Net impact in accumulated other comprehensive loss

The weighted-average asset allocations by assets category are:
Time deposit
Short-term notes
Taiwan government securities and loans

Period from

August 13 to
December 31,

$ o
504

$ 458

49%
33%
18%

100%

The amounts recognized in the accompanying balance sheets at December 31 are as follows:

Amounts recognized

Accrued pension liability

Intangible assets—deferred pension cost
Net amount recognized

Prepaid pension (included in other current assets)

Actuarial assumptions:

Year ended December 31, 2004

Discount rate used in determining present value
Rate of compensation increase

All employees

Annuity increase for retirees
Rate of return on plan assets

Plan A

Plan B

Before
Privatization

1.50%

3.50%
3.00%

1.50%
1.50%

Year Ended
December 31,
2006
NT$

$ (1,612

$ (1,612)

$ 334

(108)
$ 226

45%
27%
28%

100%

(Concluded)

Year Ended
December 31
005 2006

NT$
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19.

Before After

Privatization Privatization

Year ended December 31, 2005

Discount rate used in determining present value - 2.25%
Rate of compensation increase— all employees -— 2.00%
Rate of return on plan assets —all employees 3.00%
Year ended December 31, 2006

Discount rate used in determining present value — 2.00-2.75%
Rate of compensation increase — all employees — 1.50-3.00%
Rate of return on plan assets —all employees 2.75-3.00%

(Concluded)

The Labor Pension Act of ROC (“Act”) was effective beginning July 1, 2005 and this pension mechanism was considered as a
defined contribution plan. The employees who were subject to the Labor Standards Law prior to the enactment of the Act may
choose to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Act or continue to remain subject to the pension mechanism under the
Labor Standards Law. For those employees who were subject to the Labor Standards Law prior to July 1, 2005 and still work for
the same company after July 1, 2005 and choose to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Act, their seniority as of

July 1, 2005 shall be maintained. The rate of contribution by an employer to the Labor Pension Fund per month shall not be less
than 6% of each employee’s monthly salary or wage. The Company has contributed 6% of each employee’s monthly salary per
month beginning July 1, 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, total contributions were NT$16 million
(US$0.49 million) and NT$67 million (US$2.06 million), respectively.

INCOME TAXES
The components of income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2004 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ NT$
Current $11,102 $ 3,044 $13,875
Deferred 157 9,689 1,406

$11,259  $12,733 $15,281

A reconciliation between income tax expense computed by applying the statutory income tax rate of 25% to income before
income tax and income tax expense shown in the statements of operations and comprehensive income is as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2004 2005 2006

NT$ NT$ NT$
Income tax expense computed at statutory tax rate $15,544 $11,508 $14,335
Permanent differences (65) 3,158 149
Investment tax credits (3,379) (1,987) (3,093)
10% undistributed earning tax — 979 3,942
Prior year adjustment 49 (5) 979)
Other (890) (920) 927

Income tax expense $11,259 $12,733 $15,281




The balance of income tax payable as of December 31, 2006 was shown net of prepaid income tax. Tax refund receivable and
income tax payable as of December 31, 2005 were NT$4,338 million (included in other current assets) and NT$997 million,
respectively.

Permanent differences consist primarily of tax-exempt income from the sale of available-for-sale securities, interest income on
commercial paper purchased, which are subject to a separate income tax rate of 20% and employees stock compensation
expense.

Deferred income taxes arise due to temporary differences in the book and tax bases of certain assets and liabilities. Significant
components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities) are shown in the following table:

December 31
2005 2006
NT$ NT$
Current:
Provision for doubtful accounts $ 234 § —
Deferred income 1,039 1,227
Accrued pension costs 1,772 -—
Investment tax credits 554 —
Other, net 1,202 4
4,801 1,311
Non-current:
Deferred income 2,541 2,837
Effect on application of SFAS 158 — 108
Other 1,136 582
3,677 3,527
Less—valuation allowance 2,4 110
$5,979 $4,728

Upon the completion of the privatization, a significant portion of the deferred income tax assets related to accrued pension costs
was reversed due to the settlement of the related pension obligations.

The above deferred income tax assets were computed based on a tax rate of 25% in 2005 and 22.5% in 2006. Before
privatization, the Company had been required by government regulations to distribute all earnings to ROC governments within
six months subsequent to year-end and it had required a minimal amount of tax under this regulation; therefore the Company’s
earnings are not subject to 10% undistributed earnings tax; however, after privatization, the Company does not have to distribute
earnings to government so the Company begins to be subject to 10% undistributed earnings tax from 2006. In addition, the basis
of 10% undistributed earnings tax was amended from tax-basis undistributed earnings to book-basis undistributed earnings in
May 2006. As such, the tax rate applied to temporary difference has been changed.

. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

As the Company was a state-owned enterprise, the ROC Government is one of the Company’s customers. The Company
provides Fixed-line services, wireless services, Internet and other services to the various departments and agencies of the ROC
Government and other state-owned enterprises in the normal course of business and at arm’s-length prices before and after
privatization. The information on service revenues from government bodies and related organizations have not been provided
because the aforementioned transactions were not summarized by the Company. The Company believes that all costs of doing
business are reflected in the financial statements and that no additional expenditures would be incurred as a result of the
privatization being completed.



The Company engages in business transactions with the following related parties:

Company Relationship
Taiwan International Standard Electronics (“TISE”) Equity investee
Chunghwa System Integration (“CSI”) Subsidiary of CHI
Chunghwa Precision Test Technical Co., Ltd. (“CHPT”) Subsidiary of CHI
Chuanghwa Telecom Global, Inc. (“CHTG”) Subsidiary of CHI

Tai, Zhong-He

Former chairman of CHIEF (resigned on

September 6, 2006); as a current
member of the board of directors of

Significant transactions with the above related parties are summarized as follows:

1) Receivables
Trade notes and accounts receivable

CHTG

CHPT

2) Payables
Trade notes and accounts payable
TISE

CSI
CHTG

Accrued expenses
TISE

CHTG

CSI

Payable to construction supplier (included in “other current
liabilities”)
TISE
CSI

3) Other payables (included in other current liabilities)
Tai, Zhong-He

CHIEF.
December 31

2005 2006
Amount % Amount %
NT$ NT$
$ 49 $ 44
2 =
$ 0 _ 8 4 _
$§ 41 $ 202 2

55 1 192 2
% _  _18
$ 124 =l $ 412 =4
$ 49 $ 92

11 19
S
$ 87 $ 112
$ 319 2 $ 345 3
2 _ _1B _
$ 341 =2 $ 358 =3
5 — $ 2

(Continued)



December 31

2005 2006
Amount % Amount %
NT$ NT$
4) Revenues
CHTG - —
$ 101 $ 95
CHPT - —
S R [
$ 126 — $ 109 —
5) Cost of revenues
TISE - —
$ 135 $ 374
CSI = =
89 306
CHTG - —
81 _ 101 _
$ 305 - $ 781
6) Acquisition of equipments
TISE $ 478 2 $ 920 3
CSI 316 1 283 1
CHTG - —
B _ _1 _
$ 807 =3 $1,204 =4

The foregoing terms were conducted as arm’s length transactions except for other payable to Tai, Zhong-He. In 2005, CHIEF
agreed to provide compensation to Tai, Zhong He for providing assets that were pledged as collateral in connection with a
financing arrangement during the period from 2002 to 2005. The total compensation payable to Tai, Zhong-He for this pledge
was NT$20 million, The amount was based on the number of days that the pledged assets were used by CHIEF as collateral and
was calculated at an interest rate below 5%.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has commitments under non-cancelable contracts with various parties as follows:
(a) acquisitions of land and buildings of NT$1,575 million, and (b) acquisitions of telecommunications equipment of NT$15,479
million.

The Company also has non-cancelable operating leases covering certain buildings, computers, computer peripheral equipment
and operating system software under contracts that expire in various years. Minimum rental commitments under those leases are
as follows:

December 31,
2006
NT$

Within the following year § 1,234
During the second year 870
During the third year 611
During the fourth year 276
During the fifth year and thereafter 131
$ 3,122

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had unused letters of credit of NT$1,364 million.

F-31 F-32 [
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As a part of the government’s effort to upgrade the existing telecommunication infrastructures, the Company and other public
utility companies were required by the ROC government to contribute a total of NT$4,500 million to funds called the Fixed-
Line Fund and the Piping Fund (collectively referred to as the “funds”). Under the Fixed-Line Fund, the Company contributed
NT$1,000 million to the fund, administered by the ROC Ministry of Interior Affair, on June 30, 1995. Under the Piping Fund,
the Company contributed NT$1,000 million to the fund, administered by the Taipei City Government, on August 15, 1996. Both
contributions were accounted for by the Company as “other assets —other” on the Company’s balance sheets.

Through the use of the Funds, the governmental agencies will construct new underground fixed-lines and conduits and perform
on-going maintenance operations. Currently, a portion of the fixed-lines and conduits are constructed and ready to be used. If the
contributions to the funds were not sufficient to finance the construction of the new underground fixed lines and conduits, the
contributors to the Funds and the governmental agencies will determine if and when to raise additional funds and the amounts of
such contributions from each party.

The Company understands that (a) upon completion of the projects, the Company will receive a proportionate legal interest in
the assets; or (b) if the projects are incomplete upon dissolution of the funds, the Company will receive its money back. No
expiration or dissolution date is specified in the related documents.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 8, 2007, the Company acquired 31.5% shares of SENAO International Co., Ltd. (“SENAQ”) totaled

70,373 thousand common shares by tender offer at purchase price of NT$15.1 per share, for NT$1,063 million thousand. The
main business of SENAOQ is to provide sales of telecommunication facilities and software services. The Company is in the
process of evaluation the accounting treatment for this investment.

LITIGATION

A portion of the land used by the Company during the period July 1, 1996 to December 31, 2004 was co-owned by the
Company and Taiwan Post Co., Ltd. (the former Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd, Directorate General of Postal Service). In accordance
with the claims process in Taiwan, on July 12, 2005, the Taiwan Taipei District Court sent a claim notice to the Company to
reimburse Taiwan Post Co., Ltd. in the amount of NT$768 million for land usage compensation due to the portion of land usage
area in excess of the Company’s ownership, along with interest calculated at 5% interest rate from June 30, 2005 to the payment
date. However, the Company believes that the computation used to derive the land usage compensation amount is inaccurate
because most of the compensation amount has expired as result of the expiration clause. Therefore, the Company has filed an
appeal at the Taiwan Taipei District court. As of March 13, 2007, the case is still in the procedure of the first instance at the
Taiwan Taipei District Court. While the Company cannot make any assurance regarding the eventual resolution of the litigation,
the Company does not believe the final outcome will have a material adverse effect on its results of operations or financial
condition. As of December 31, 2006, no provision was provided for the litigation.

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings of a nature considered normal to its business. It is the Company’s policy
to accrue for amounts related to these legal matters when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount is
reasonably estimable.

The Company believes that the various asserted claims and litigation in which it is involved will not materially affect its
financial position, future operating results or cash flows, although no assurance can be given with respect to the ultimate
outcome of any such claim or litigation.



24, INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Derivative financial instruments

The Company entered into forward exchange contracts and index future contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign
currency risk and variability in operating results due to fluctuations in exchange rates underlying the value of assets
denominated in foreign currencies until such assets are received and fluctuations in stock prices. The Company engaged in
foreign currency forward exchange contracts and index future contracts during the year ended December 31, 2006. Net
losses arising from derivative financial instruments for the year ended December 31, 2006 were NT$52 million (including
realized settlement losses of NT$32 million and valuation losses of NT$20 million).

Outstanding forward exchange contracts as of December 31, 2006:

Contract
Amount
Currency Holding Period (in Million)
December 31, 2006
Sell JPY/USD 2006.11-2007.01 JPY 490
EUR/USD 2006.11-2007.01 EUR 7
GBP/USD 2006.11-2007.01 GBP 2
Outstanding index future contracts as of December 31, 2006:
Contract
Amount
Maturity Date Units (in Million)
December 31, 2006
Index future contracts
AMSTERDAM IDX FUT 2007.01 8 EUR 1
CAC40 10 EURO FUT 2007.01 45 EUR 2
DAX INDEX FUTURE 2007.03 11 EUR 2
IBEX 35 INDEX FUTR 2007.01 7 EUR 1
MINI S&P/MIB FUT 2007.03 23 EUR 1
FTSE 100 IDX FUT 2007.03 33 GBP 2
TOPIX INDEX FUTURE 2007.03 32 JPY 513
S&P 500 FUTURE 2007.03 23 USD 8
S&P 500 EMINI FUTURE 2007.03 13 UsD 1
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25.

Non-derivative financial instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $41,891  $41,891  $70,673  $70,673
Short-term investments 14,171 14,171 6,951 6,951
Long-term Investments for which it is:
— Practicable to estimate fair value 1,790 1,790 — —
— Not practicable 76 - 1,945 1,945
Refundable deposits (included in “other assets
— other”) 3,577 3,577 3,545 3,545
Liabilities
Short-term loans = — 126 126
Customers’ deposits 7,392 6,169 6,654 5,641
Long-term loans (including current portion of long-term
loans) 500 500 323 323

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is

practicable to estimate that value:

a.  Cash and cash equivalents, trading account assets and liabilities, and short-term investments — the carrying amounts
approximate fair values because of the short maturity of those instruments.

b. Long-term investments— the fair values of some investments are estimated based on quoted market prices for those or
similar investments. For other investments for which there are no quoted market prices, a reasonable estimate of fair value
could not be made without incurring excessive costs. Additional information pertinent to the value of an unquoted
investment is provided above.

¢.  Refundable deposits —the carrying amounts approximate fair values as the carrying amounts are the amount receivable on
demand at the reporting date.

d. Customers’ deposits —the fair value is the discounted value based on projected cash flows. The projected cash flows were
discounted using the average expected customer service periods.

e.  Short-term loans and long-term loans (including current portion) —the fair value is based on the current rates offered to the
Company for debt of the same remaining maturities.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise regarding which separate financial information is available for
regular evaluation by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance.

The Company organizes its business segments based on the various types of telecommunications services provided to
customers. The operating segments are segregated as below:

Local operations — the provision of local telephone services;

DLD operations—the provision of domestic long distance call services;
ILD operations—the provision of international long distance call services;
Cellular operations —the provision of cellular and related services;

Internet and data operation —the provision of Internet access, lease line, and related services;



All other operations —the services other than the above five categories, such as paging operations and carrying out project
research and providing training.

The operating segments are managed separately because each operating segment represents a strategic business unit that serves
different markets.

The Company evaluates performance based on several factors using information prepared on the ROC government regulations
basis. The information below is provided on this basis with a summary of US GA AP adjustments to reconcile to the amounts
presented in the statement of operations. The Company does not allocate interest and other income, interest expense or taxes to
operating segments, nor does the Company’s chief operating decision maker evaluate operating segments on these criteria.
Except as discussed above, the accounting policies for segment reporting are the same as for the company as a whole. The
Company’s primary measure of segment profit is based on income or loss from operations.



a.  Business segments:

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2004

Revenues for reportable segments
Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Total revenues from external customers
Operating costs and expenses, excluding

depreciation and amortization
Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount

Total operating costs and expenses, excluding

depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total depreciation and amortization
Income from operations

Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total income from operations
Segment income before income tax
Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount

Total segment income before
income tax

Segment assets
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total segment assets

Expenditures for segment assets

Unallocated corporate amount
Total expenditures for segment assets

Fixed-line Cellular Internet All
Local _ DLD ILD Service and Data Other Total
NT$ NT$  NTS NS NS NTS  NTS
$ 60,666 $14325 $15,159 $71216 $ 50,194 $ 3,551 $215,111
(17451)  (2,417) 3)  (1,081)  (10,843) 18)  (31,813)
1,711 36 49 137 (1) 27) 1865
$ 44926 $11944 $15205 $70272 $ 39310 $ 3,506 $185,163
$ 34975 $ 5117 $10,728 $32,726 $ 23,800 $ 2,181 $109,527
4,125) (3,784) (3.070) (12.859)  (7,591)  (384) (31813)
1,324 (109)  (110) 35 11 147 1,298
$32,174 $ 1224 §$7548 $19902 $16220 $ 194 79,012
3,976
$ 82,988
$20225 $ 85 $ 671 $§ 5946 §$ 12464 $ 816 $ 40,957
(227) (10) (11) (56) (104) 4) (412)
$19998 $ 85 $ 660 $ 580 $ 12360 $ 812 40,545
158
$ 40,703
$ 5466 $8373 $3760 $32,544 $13930 $ 554 $ 64,627
(13326) 1367 3067 11778  (3252) 366 =
614 155 170 158 52 (170) 979
$ (7246) $ 95895 $ 6997 $44480 $ 10730 $ 750 65,606
(4,134)
$ 61472
$ 5630 $8585 $392 $32540 $ 14317 $ 476 $ 65477
(13326) 1367 3067 11778  (3252) 366 —
745 25 ®) 140 (168)  (160) 574
$ (6951) $9977 $6988 $44458 $ 10897 $ 682 66051
3,874)
$ 62,177
$199,136 $ 6406 $13,834 $65831 $106402 $16,024 $407,633
(40,132) (1421) (1452) (5275) (16,108) (1,874) (66,262)
$159,004 $ 4,985 $12382 $60,556 $ 90,294 $14,150 341,371
97,050
$438,421
$ 4475 $ 309 $ 255 § 5512 $ 11572 $ 722 § 22,845
44
$ 22,889




As of and for the year ended December 31, 2005

Revenues for reportable segments
Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Total revenues from external customers

Operating costs and expenses, excluding
depreciation and amortization

Elimination of intersegment amount

US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount

Total operating costs and expenses, excluding

depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total depreciation and amortization
Income from operations

Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total income from operations
Segment income before income tax

Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total segment income before income tax

Segment assets
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total segment assets

Expenditures for segment assets

Unallocated corporate amount
Total expenditures for segment assets

Fixed-line Cellular Internet All
Local DLD ILD Service and Data Other Total
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
$ 57,873 $13268 $14,482 $73938 $56951 §$ 3317 $219,829
(17.360)  (2,400) = (1,167)  (14,806) (17)  (35.750)
228 83 99 238 (1) (30) 617
$ 40,741 $10,951 $14,581 $ 73,009 $42,144 §$ 3,270 $184,696
$ 35625 $ 4786 $10,549 $35565 $27227 $ 3,173 $116,925
(4,027) (3,359) (3,183) (13,838) (10,848) (495)  (35,750)
4,365 82 262 1,025 5,981 541 12,256
$ 3593 $ 1,509 $ 7,628 $22752 $22,360 $ 3,219 93,431
4,941
$ 98,372
$19256 § 728 § 662 $ 7474 $12495 $ 800 $ 41415
(233) ®) (10) 65  (105) 27 (394)
$19023 § 720 § 652 $ 7409 $12390 $ 827 41,021
142
$ 41,163
$ 2992 $7754 $3271 $30899 $17,229 $ (656) $ 61,489
(13,333) 959 3,183 12,671  (3958) 478 =
(3,904) 9 (153) (722)  (5877)  (598) (11,245)
$(14245) $8722 $6301 $42848 $ 7394 $ (776) 50,244
5,083)
$ 45,161
$ 3215 §$8003 §$ 3417 $31,368 §$ 17,653 $(1,149) $ 62,507
(13,333) 959 3,183 12,671 (3,958) 478 —
(3762)  (152)  (301) (1,010) (6,089)  (228) (11,542)
$(13,880) $ 8,810 $ 6,299 $43029 §$ 7,606 $ (899) 50,965
(4,933)
$ 46,032
$192398 § 6342 $11,779 $62004 $98,573 $17,639 $388,735
(40,455) (1,510) (1,573) (4,591) (13,827) (4,619) (66,575)
$151,943 § 4,832 $10,206 $57,413 §$ 84,746 $13,020 322,160
73,008
$395,168
$ 4518 $ 403 § 229 $ 4449 $12707 $ 608 $ 22,914
16
$ 22,930




As of and for the year ended December 31, 2006

Revenues for reportable segments

Elimination of intersegment amount

US GAAP adjustments

Total revenues from external customers

Operating costs and expenses, excluding
depreciation and amortization

Elimination of intersegment amount

US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount

Total operating costs and expenses, excluding
depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total depreciation and amortization
Income from operations

Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total income from operations
Segment income before income tax

Elimination of intersegment amount
US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount

Total segment income before income tax and
minority interest

Segment assets

US GAAP adjustments

Unallocated corporate amount
Total segment assets

Expenditures for segment assets

Unallocated corporate amount
Total expenditures for segment assets

Fixed-line Cellular Internet All

Local DLD ILD Service and Data Other Total

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
$ 56,378 $12,353 $13,978 §$76,179 $60,888 § 4225 $224,001
(18,790) (2,529) (1) (3,202) (14,562) (166)  (39,250)
1,411 64 68 46 2 — 1,591
$ 38999 § 9888 $14,045 $73,023 $46328 $ 4,059 $186,342
$ 36,586 §$ 4,828 $10,566 $38,065 $27680 $ 3905 $121,630
(4,650) (3,437) (3,625) (14,695) (12,062) (778)  (39,247)
2,780 (151) 49 (288) 224 53 2,667
$34716 $ 1,240 $699 $23,082 $15842 § 3,180 85,050
4,345
$ 89,395
$18178 $ 663 $ 551 $ 8289 $12499 $ 729 $ 40,909
(215) ) ) (69) (110) 29 (381)
$17963 § 656 § 542 $ 8220 $1238 §$ 758 40,528
122
$ 40,650
$ 1613 $6862 $ 2861 $29804 $20,731 $ (409) $ 61,462
(14,140) 908 3,624 11,493 (2,500) 612 3)
(1,154) 222 28 403 (112) (82) (695)
$(13,681) § 7992 § 6,513 $41,7700 $18,119 § 121 60,764
4,467)
$ 56,297
$ 736 §$ 7,113 $ 2,797 $30,190 $20872 § (679) $ 61,029
(14,140) 908 3,624 11,493 (2,500) 612 3)
130 52 11 (74) (341) (59) (281)
$(13,2714) $ 8,073 $ 6432 $41,609 $18,031 § (126) 60,745
53,405}
$ 57,340
$180,710 §$ 5104 $ 9,898 $60,026 $91,816 $23,684 $371,238
(38,999) (1,338) (1,670) (4,454) (13,820) (5,376) (65,657)
$141,711 $ 3,766 $ 8228 §$55,572 $77,996 $18,308 305,581
93,200
$398,781
$ 5066 $§ — $ 350 $ 9406 $12482 §$ 360 $ 27,664
17
$ 27,681




As significance of paging operations has been decreased below quantitative thresholds required by SFAS 131 in 2006 and thereafter,
the Company did not disclose paging operations separately, and prior years disclosure was changed in conformity with the disclosure
of 2006.

b.  Geographic information

The users of the Company’s services are mainly from Taiwan, ROC. The revenues it derived outside Taiwan are mainly inter-
connection fees from other telecommunication carriers. The geographic information for revenues is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2004 2005 2006
NT$ NT$ NT$
Taiwan, ROC $180,031 $180,793 $182,687
Overseas 5,132 3,903 3,655

$185,163  $184,696  $186,342

c.  Gross sales to major customers
The Company has no single customer account representing 10% or more of its total revenues for all periods presented.

The Company has non-revenue generating offices in Thailand, U.S. and Vietnam. All non-current assets (including investments
in unconsolidated companies, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and other assets) except for NT$0.01 million and
NT$0.06 million at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, are located in Taiwan, ROC.
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Exhibit 1.2

[Translation]

Articles of Incorporation of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.
All 26 articles adopted by Promoters Meeting on June 11, 1996.
Article 15 amended by General Shareholders Meeting on December 26, 1997.
Articles 2 and 22 amended by General Shareholders Meeting on November 25, 1998.
Paragraph 1 of Article 21, amended by Special Shareholders Meeting on July 13, 1999.

Articles 2, 3, 6,7, 10, 12, 13, 19, 21, and 22 amended, and Articles 6-1 and 7-1 inserted by General
Shareholders Meeting on June 4, 2001.

Articles 2,7, 8, 9, 10, 19, 21, and 22 amended and Article 5 deleted by General Shareholders Meeting on
June 21, 2002.

Articles 2 amended by General Shareholders Meeting on June 17, 2003.
Articles 2 and 22 amended by General Shareholders Meeting on June 25, 2004.

Articles 2, 3, 6, 10, 11, 12, 14, 17, 19, 20, 22, 23, and 25 amended, and Articles 12-1, 18-1, and 18-2
inserted by General Shareholders Meeting on May 30, 2006.

Chapter I—General Provisions

Article 1—The Company is promoted by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications (“MOTC”) and

others and organized under the Telecommunication Law, the Statute of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation Statute™) and the provisions of the Company Law
pertaining to companies limited by shares and is named “Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.”.

The English name of the Company is “Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.”.

Artticle 2—The scope of business of the Company shall be as follows:

1) Telecommunications Enterprise of Type 1 (G901011);

2) Telecommunications Enterprise of Type 2 (G902011);

3) [Installation of the Computer Equipment Business (E605010);
4) Telecommunication Equipment Wholesale Business (F113070);
5) Telecommunication Equipment Retail Business (F213060);

6) Telecommunication Engineering Business (E701010);

7) Imstallation of the Radio-Frequency Equipment whose operation is controlled by the
Telecommunication Business (E701030);

8) Information Software Service Business (I301010);

9) Other Designer Businesses [the design of the computer information hardware] (1599990);
10) Rental Business (JE01010);

11) Publishing Business (J304010);

12) Other Wholesale Businesses [telephone card and IC card] (F199990);

13) Management and Consulting Service Business (I1103060);

14) Other Corporation Service Businesses [telephone card, IC card, the research and development of
the telecommunication facilities and devices, accepting payment on behalf of businesses and
institutions, telecommunication equipment inspection services, and agency sale of entry tickets
and travel fares] (IZ99990);



15) Other Retail Businesses [telephone card and IC card] (F299990);

16) Online Certification Service Businesses (IZ13010);

17) Supply of Electronic Information Service Businesses (1301030);

18) Information Process Service Business (1301020);

19) Telecommunication Account Application Agency Businesses (IE01010);
20) Management of Overdue Accounts Payable Service Businesses (1Z11010);
21) Real Estate Rental Businesses (H703100);

22) Technique and Performing Arts Training (J201031)

23) Waste Disposal Businesses (J101040);

24) Community Common Cable Television Equipment Businesses (J502020),
25) Exhibition Service Businesses (JB01010);

26) General Advertising Service Businesses (1401010);

27) Department Store Businesses (F301010);

28) Communication Newsletter Businesses (J302010);

29) Industry and Commerce Credit Investigation Service Businesses (JD01010);
30) Public Notarization Businesses (IZ07010);

31) Parking Lot Operation Businesses (G202010);

32) Environmental Assessment Service Businesses (J101050);

33) Engineering Technology Consultation Services (1101061);

34) Computer and Accessories Manufacturing Service (CC01110);

35) Information Storage an Process Equipment Manufacturing Businesses (CC01120);
36) Electronic Component Manufacturing Businesses (CC01080);

37) Other Electrical and Electronic Machinery & Equipment Manufacturing Businesses [IC or
Optical Card Scanners] (CC01990);

38) Radio-Frequency Equipment Import Business (F401021);

39) Cable System Operator Business (J504011);

40) General Hotel Business (J901020);

41) Tourism Hotel Business (J901011);

42) Computer and Administrative Device Wholesale Businesses (F113050);
43) Information Software Wholesale Businesses (F118010);

44) Computer and Administrative Device Retail Businesses (F213030);

45) Information Software Rental Businesses (F218010)

46) Except the permitted business, the Company may engage in other businesses not prohibited or
restricted by laws and regulations.

The Company may handle endorsement and guaranty affairs in accordance with the Operation
Procedures for the Endorsement and Guaranty of the Company if there is any business need.
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Article 3—In the event that the Company invests in another business as a limited-liability shareholder, the total
investment amount may not exceed the total paid-in capital of the Company. Investment not related to
telecommunications may not exceed 20% of the total paid-in capital of the Company.

Article 4—The head office of the Company is located in Taipei City and the Company may establish branch
office(s) and liaison office(s) at appropriate locations within or outside the territory of the Republic of
China.

Article 5—(Deleted)

Chapter II—Shares

Article 6—The registered capital of the Company shall be One Hundred Twenty Billion and Twenty New
Taiwan Dollars (NT$120,000,000,020), divided into One Billion Twenty Million
(12,000,000,000) common shares and Two (2) preferred shares with a par value of Ten New Taiwan
Dollars (NT$10) per share. All the common shares shall be issued in increments by the Board of
Directors pursuant to the laws and regulations.

Article 6-1—The rights, obligations, and other important conditions regarding the preferred shares issued by the
Company are stated as follows:

1) The rights of the preferred shares with respect to the distribution of dividends and bonuses, the
Company’s retained properties, and the Company’s profits and capital reserve in cash or the
appropriated capital, etc. shall be equal to those of the common shares.

2) The shareholder(s) of the preferred shares has/have the same right to vote or election with
those of the shareholder(s) of the common shares at a common shareholders’ meeting,.

3) During the term of the preferred shares, the shareholder(s) of the preferred share shall be the
director(s) and supervisor(s) and may be re-appointed by MOTC at any time.

4) When the Company issues new shares in cash, the shareholder(s) of the preferred shares shall
have the same preemptive rights with respect to the new shares as those of the shareholder(s)
of the common shares.

5) The Company shall obtain the consents of the shareholder(s) of the preferred shares before
engaging in the following matters and, failing so, the action will be deemed void:

(1) To amend the Company’s name
(2) To amend the Company’s business scope
(3) To transfer all or the essential part of the Company’s business or assets

6) The preferred shares issued by the Company shall not be transferred. At the end of the third
year from the issuance date of the preferred shares, the Company shall reacquire the preferred
shares by their par value and then cancel them. The issuance date shall be the record date of
the capital increase of the preferred shares.

Article 7— The share certificates of the Company shall bear the shareholders’ names, be signed or sealed by the
Chairman and at least two other directors, be serially numbered, affixed with the corporate seal of the
Company, and legalized by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (“MOEA”) (hereinafter referred to as
the “Competent Authority™) or its certified issuance registration agency before they are issued in
accordance with the relevant laws.

When issuing new shares, the Company may print a share certificate in respect of the full number of
shares to be issued at that time, and shall arrange for the certificate to be kept by a centralized
securities custodian institution, in which case the preceding requirement for serial numbering of share
certificates shall not apply.



Shares issued by the Company may also be exempt from printing of share certificates, and the
Company shall arrange for such shares to be recorded by a centralized securities custodian
institution, in which case the preceding 2 paragraphs shall not apply.

Any affair with regard to the shares of the Company shall be handled in accordance with the
Guidelines for Handling Stock Affairs by a Public Issuing Company.

Article 7-1—The share certificates issued by the Company may be jointly exchanged for the share certificates
with a larger par value upon the request of the Taiwan Securities Centralized Depository Company
Limited by Shares.

Chapter III—Shareholders’ Meeting

Article 8—Shareholders’ meetings shall be of two types: general shareholders’ meeting and special shareholders’
meeting. Except as otherwise provided in the Company Law, shareholders’ meetings shall be
convened by the Board of Directors.

The general shareholders” meeting shall be convened at least once every year and shall be convened
within six (6) months after the close of each fiscal year except as otherwise approved by the
Competent Authority for good cause shown.

The special shareholders’ meeting shall be convened at such time as may be deemed necessary
pursuant to relevant laws and regulations.

Article 9—Where a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the board of directors, the chairman of the Company
shall act as the chairman of the shareholders’ meeting. In the event that the chairman is to be on leave
of absence or cannot attend the meeting for any cause whatsoever, the vice-chairman, or where the
chairman and the vice-chairman are both to be on leave of absence or cannot attend the meeting for
any cause whatsoever, one of the directors appointed by the chairman, or, where there is no
appointment, a director elected among all the directors, may act on behalf of the chairman.

Where a shareholders” meeting is convened by a person with authority other than the board of
directors, such convener shall act as the chairman of the shareholders’ meeting. Where there are two
(2) or more conveners, the chairman of the meeting shall be elected amongst such conveners.

Article 10— Unless otherwise specified by the law, each shareholder of the Company shall be entitled to one vote
for each share held.

Article 11 —(Deleted)

Chapter IV —Directors and Supervisors

Article 12—The Company shall have seven (7) to fifteen (15) directors to form the Board of Directors, one-fifth
(1/5) of whom shall be expert representatives.
The Board of Directors shall have one (1) chairman elected by and from among the directors with

the concurrence of a general majority of the directors present at a meeting attended by at least
two-thirds (2/3) of the directors and shall have one (1) vice-chairman elected in the same way.

The Company shall have three (3) to five (5) supervisors.

During the term of the preferred shares, there shall be at least one (1) seat of the directors and the
supervisors each reserved for the shareholders of the preferred shares.

Article 12-1 In accordance with Articles 181-2 and 183 of the Securities and Exchange Law, the Company shall,
beginning in the fifth commencement, establish three (3) independent directors to be included in the
number of directors designated in the preceding Article,

The elections for independent directors shall proceed with the candidate nomination system; the
shareholders shall elect the independent directors from among the nominees listed in the roster of
independent director candidates.

s |«



Elections for independent and non-independent directors shall proceed concurrently, and the number
of elected directors shall be calculated separately.

The professional qualifications, restrictions on shareholding and concurrent post, affirmation of
independence, nomination and election processes, exercise of authority and other requirements of
independent directors shall be determined and executed in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Law and related regulations.

Article 13— The tenure of office of the directors and supervisors will be three (3) years and they will be eligible
for re-election.

The tenure of the directors and supervisors of the shareholders of the preferred shares appointed
without election and who are not subject to any restriction of the tenure set forth in the previous
paragraph ends upon the termination of the issuance period of the preferred shares.

In the event that the representative of a government or corporate body is elected as the director or
the supervisor, the government or corporate body may reappoint such representative at anytime to
supplement the original tenure.

Article 14—The following items shall be decided by the board of directors:
(1) Increase or reduction of capital of the Company.
(2) Regulations with regard to the organization of the Company.

(3) Establishment, amendment, and abolishment of the branch offices within or outside the territory
of the Republic of China.

(4) Examination of annual business budgets and final budgets.

(5) Distribution of profits or off-set of deficit.

(6) The amount and term of domestic and foreign loan.

(7) The amount of Investment.

(8) Issuance of corporate bonds.

(9) Policies regarding personnel matters, material purchase, accounting, and internal control.

(10) Amendment and modifications of regulations of organization of the board of directors and
guidelines on establishing functional committee.

(11) Amendment and modification of regulations with regard to the scope of duties of independent
directors.

(12) Appointment and removal of the president, vice presidents, presidents of Telecommunication
Laboratories and Telecommunication Training Institute, and audit and accounting section
chiefs.

(13) The remuneration standard for employees.
(14) Policies regarding recommendation of chairman and president to subsidiaries.
(15) Other duties and powers granted by the law or by shareholders meeting.

Article 15— The board of directors’ meeting shall be convened every two (2) months. The special board of
directors’ meeting shall be convened at such time as may be deemed necessary. Both meetings shall
be convened by the chairman of the Company and such chairman shall act as the chairman of the
meeting. In the event that the chairman cannot attend the meeting for any cause whatsoever, the
vice-chairman, or where the chairman and the vice-chairman are both to be on leave of absence or
cannot attend the meeting for any cause whatsoever, one of the directors appointed by the chairman,
or, where there is no appointment, a director elected among all the directors, may act on behalf of
the chairman.



Article 16— All directors shall attend every board of directors’ meeting; in case any of the directors cannot attend
the meeting for any cause whatsoever, he/she may designate the other directors to act on his/her
behalf and such agent shall present the proxy setting forth the vested power of the purpose of the
meeting each time. However, each agent shall only accept one appointment from the directors.

Except as otherwise provided in the relevant laws or this Articles of Incorporation, any resolution of
a board of directors’ meeting shall be adopted at a meeting which at least general majority of the
directors attend and at which meeting a general majority of the directors present vote in favor of
such resolution.

Minutes of meetings shall be prepared for all resolutions adopted at a board of directors’ meeting.
Article 17—The supervisors shall perform the following functions:

(1) To investigate the business and financial condition of the Company;

(2) To inspect the books, records and documents of the Company; and

(3) Other powers granted by the laws and regulations.

Article 18 —In addition to performing the functions of a supervisor in accordance with the relevant laws, the
supervisors may attend the board of directors’ meeting to express his/her opinion but may not
participate in any voting.

Article 18-1 Remunerations of the directors and supervisors shall be examined and proposed by the
compensation committee of board of directors, and be adopted by the resolution of board of the
directors.

Article 18-2 The Company may purchase liability insurance policies for directors and supervisors during the
term of their offices and within the scope of damages results from the performances of their official
duties in order to reduce and disperse the risks for the Company and shareholders due to the fault,
mistake, violation of duty, and inaccurate or misleading statements on part of the directors and
supervisors during the performance of their duties.

Chapter V—Managerial Officers

Article 19—The Company shall have one (1) chief executive officer, to be served as a concurrent post by the
chairman or by the president, to lead the managers in proposing and making significant policy
decisions regarding to the Company and all affiliates of the Company.

The Company shall have one (1) president, several executive vice presidents, senior vice presidents,
and the presidents of laboratory and institute. The president shall be a director with professional
knowledge in telecommunication business.

Article 20—The president shall, in accordance with the decision made by the board of directors and with
instruction from the chief executive officer, take charge of the affairs of the Company, and shall
have the authority to sign on behalf of the Company; the executive vice presidents and senior vice
presidents shall assist the president in all affairs, and shall have the power to sign on behalf of the
Company within the scope set by rules decided by the president or authorized in writing by the
president.

The division of powers and duties between the board of directors and the president shall be
determined in accordance with the Powers and Duties Chart.

Chapter VI— Accounting
Article 21 —The fiscal year of the Company shall be from January 1 to December 31 of each year.
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At the end of each fiscal year, the board of directors shall prepare the following statements and
reports, and submit the same to the supervisor(s) for examination thirty (30) days prior to the annual
shareholders’ meeting, and then shall submit the same to the annual shareholders’ meeting for
adoption.

(1) Report of Operations;
(2) Financial statements;
(3) Resolution governing the distribution of profit or the making-up of losses.

Article 22 — After the Company has paid all taxes due at the end of each fiscal year, the Company shall offset its
accumulated losses and set aside ten percent (10%) of the net profit as the statutory revenue reserve
before distribution of profits, except when the accumulated amount of such legal reserve equals to
the Company’s total authorized capital. The Company may also set aside special reserve(s)
according to the business need or laws and regulations. A minimum of fifty percent (50%) of the
total amount of the balance, including the accumulated retained profits from the previous year, shall
be distributed in the following manner:

1) Employee bonuses between two percent (2%) to five percent (5%);
2) Remuneration for directors and supervisors not higher than 0.2%.

3) The remainder after deducting amounts in subparagraphs 1) and 2) shall be shareholders’
dividends. Cash dividends shall not be below fifty percent (50%) of the total dividends, but
when the cash dividends fall below NT$0.1 per share, dividends shall be distributed in the form
of stocks.

Subparagraphs 1) and 2) of the preceding paragraph shall apply upon the privatization of the
Company, however, with respect to the year in which privatization occurred, the dividends shall be
distributed based on the profits derived during the period after privatization.

The percentage of distribution stipulated in paragraph 1 shall take into consideration of the actual
profitability of the year, capital budgeting, and status of finance, and shall be executed following the
resolution of shareholders meeting.

Dividends and bonuses shall not be distributed where the Company has no profits, provided that
where the statutory revenues reserve exceeds fifty percent (50%) of paid-up capital of the Company,
the portion in excess may be distributed as shareholders’ dividends.

Article 23 —In the event that the Company issues new shares, excluding ad hoc ratification by the central
competent authority, the Company shall reserve ten percent (10%) to fifteen percent (15%) of the
total newly issued shares for preemptive subscription by employees of the Company.

Chapter VII—Supplementary Provisions

Article 24 —The regulations with regard to the organization of the Board of Directors and the Company shall be
separately adopted.

Article 25—Matters not specified herein shall be resolved in accordance with the Company Law.
Article 26 —This Articles of Incorporation was adopted on June 11, 1996.
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LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
NAME OF ENTITY JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION
Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Corporation Taiwan
Chief Telecom Inc. Taiwan
Unigate Telecom Inc. Taiwan
Chief Telecom (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
New Prospect Investment Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands
Prime Asia Investments Group Litd. British Virgin Islands




[

Exhibit 12.1
CERTIFICATION OF OUR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Tan Ho Chen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included
in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee of the company’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: April 23, 2007

Name: Tan Ho C]ren
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 12.2
CERTIFICATION OF OUR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Joseph C.P. Shieh, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included
in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit committee of the company’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: April 23, 2007 ;; g %2 ?
By: Is/

Name: Joseph C.P. Shich
Title: Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 13

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned, Tan Ho Chen, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), and Joseph C. P. Shieh, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
each hereby certifies, to his knowledge, that:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2006 (the “Report™)
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 23, 2007

T N

Name: Tan Ho Chen

Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
By: s/ M
Name: Joseph C.P. Shieh

Title: Chief Financial Officer
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